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Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2012

The directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Company and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012

RSA Insurance Group plc (the Group), of which the Company 1s an important part 1s managed along divisional hines The Company
transacts the majonity of the UK business, as described n the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group The directors of the
Company have considered whether the Group approach to sirategy, sk management, performance review and custody of assets
fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate regulated entity They have concluded that it does

Business review, prancipal activities and future outlook

The principal acuvity of the Company, 1ts subsidiaries and overseas branches 1s the transactien of msurance and related financial
services 1n the Umted Kingdom and overseas The principal subsicharies and associated undertakings are listed in note 34 to the
financial statements

As part of the Group’s response to the anticipated implementation of the Solvency II Directive and to deliver sigmficant operational
efficiencies, the Company undertook an insurance business transfer under Part VII of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
whereby some or all of the business of certain Group companies transferred to the Company with effect from 1 January 2012 A
small part of the Company’s business was transferred to The Marine Insurance Company Limited, an RSA Group company, under a
similar insurance business transfer scheme and the legacy general insurance business of PA (GI) Limited (“PAGI”) (a former Group
company that 1s currently a member of the Phoemx Group of companies} was also transferred to the Company and The Marine
Insurance Company Limited under two separate insurance business transfer schemes  Further detail 1s included in note 6 to the
financial stalements

The results for the Company show a profit on ordinary activities before tax of £406m (2011 £425m) for the year, due principally 1o
£606m (2011 £629m} of dividend income from subsidiary undertakings and gross prermiums written of £4,293m (2011 £3,576m)
Gross premiums wrilten are higher in 2012 principally due to the above mentioned insurance business transfer effective from 1
January 2012 The shareholders’ funds of the Company were £4,575m as at 31 December 2012 (3] December 2011 £4,312m)

In the Umited Kingdom, which 1s the Company's major market. the Company s a leading Commercial insurer and a top five
Personal lines insurer through direct and affinuity channels In Commercial the Company offers a full suite of products across
Property, Liability Motor and Marine and distnibutes predominantly through insurance brokers In Personal the Company provides
Household, Motor and Pet insurance through isurance brokers and affinity partners as well as MORE TH>N and eChoice, 1ts direct
businesses

In Personal business, premiums are down compared (o 2011, whilst the underwnung result has improved Following poor weather
tn the first half of the year, the Personal Household underwning result was down The tocus on profit over volume in Personal
Motor delivered an improved underwriting result, however softening prices throughout the year continue to make this a challenging
market Pet insurance also delivered a stronger underwnting result

The Company 1s actively dealing with the challenges in the UK Commercial Market, by remaining selective regarding the brokers it
wants to work with and driving rate increases across the business Commercial Property performed well with both premiums and
underwriting result benefitung from sustatned rating activity  Liabihity suffered from a number of large losses and an increase in the
frequency of “ship and tnp” claims The Company 15 addressing this trend through underwniung and raung action  Included in the
Commercial Motor result 1s a large Commercial Motor contract which represents the majority of Commercial Motor premums and
underwriting result  The Company 1s working on the details of new arrangements for this contract to be effective from October
2013, however, Commercial Motor will continue to be negatively affected by the contract’s old tranches for the next few years The
Company 1s confident that 1t 1s making progress in the Commercial Motor market Excluding this large contract, Commercial Motor
premiums were down in 2012 Duning the year, the Company exited a number of Commercial Motor markets ncluding Risk
Managed Motor and Motor Trade Marine premums were up against 2011 but the underwniting result suffered from large losses
including the Costa Concordia and Superstorm Sandy

The Company’s focus will continue to be on underwriting profit over volume The Company will continue with ats nlensive
approach to portfolio management and expects only modest growth in premiums

Daividends

Interim dividends of £n1l (2071 £500m) were declared during the year The directors do not recommend payment of a final ordinary
dividend (2011 £fmul)




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Company’s principal risks and uncertainties are integrated within and managed together with the principal nsks of the Group
The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group, which include those of the UK business, and hence the Company, are set out 1n
the estimation techmques, risks, unceriainties and contingencies on pages 88 to 91, and 1n the nsk review on pages 26 to 29 of the
Annual Report & Accounts of the Group which do not form part of this report

A discussion of the management of financial nsk 1s s¢t out below
Financial risk management

The Company 15 exposed to financial nisk through us financial assets, financial habiliues, reinsurance assets and insurance
Liabilities In particular the key financial nisk 1s that the proceeds from the realisation of 1ts financial assets are not sufficient to fund
the obligations ansing from its surance contracts

The Company manages its financial assets within a framework that has been developed to seek to ensure the ability to meet 1ts
obligations under insurance contracts A key principle behind this process 1s to hold assets that provide a broad maich against the
Lhabilities arising from insurance contracts

There 1s a potential nisk within the 1nvestment portiolio ansing from an mnappropriate matching ol cash and fixed interest assels
against habilites by duration However the relatively short duration of a general insurance portfolio together with the Company’s
strategy of broadly matching assets and labilitzes by durauion provides mitigation against these risks The Company reviews the
duration of its labiliies and asset portfolios to ensure that they remain broadly matched Investment directives himit permissible
durauion ranges within the individual portfolios These directives also include objectives for hiquidity, asset sector concentration and
credit quahty The Company 1s not party to any arrangements for which hedge accounting 1s used

Credit risk

The primary sources of credit risk within the Company are investment and treasury activities and reinsurance counterparty rnisk
Within the investment management and treasury activities, a range of bank counterparty concentration and credit quality limuts
together with other controls are 1n place 10 ensure that exposure 1s managed New reinsurance cover 15 placed with reinsurers that are
authorised as Approved Remsurance Counterparties recommended by the Group Reinsurance Credit Commuitice

Market risk

Market nisk anises within the Company’s investment portfolios A Group commuttee oversees tlhe Company’s investment strategy
and sets appropriate rnisk limits to ensure that no sigmficant concentrations to individual companies or sectors arise

Liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s considered to be a low nisk category Liquidity 15 managed such that the Company maintains a mimmum level of
cash or cash equivalents or highly liquid assets that can be liquidated within a maximum stated period of ume Conungency funding
plans are prepared and monitored to ensure that these mintmum levels are met even 1n stress conditions

Key performance indicators

The directors of the Group manage the Group's operations on a divisional basis as described 1o the Annual Report & Accounts of
the Group For this reason the Company’s directors behieve that analysis using key performance indicators (KPls) for the UK
business 1n aggregate 1s relevant to the Company

A key measure used by the Company in managing the business 1s the technical result This measure 1s calculated by aggregating
earned premiums less claims incurred less expenses

Further wnfermation on financial KPIs 1s detailed in the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group {(which do not form part of this
report) within the Group Chief Executive’s review on pages 10 to 13 and the regional business reviews on pages 18 10 25 The
Annual Report & Accounts of the Group also includes non-financial KPIs which are detailed in the regional business reviews on
pages 18 1o 25, the corporate responsibility report on pages 30 to 33 and the Directors’ and corporate governance report on pages 40
1o 54
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Directors’ report
for the year ended 31 December 2012

Employment policy

The Company’s approach and employment policy reflects us belief that mouvated and skilled employees are critical to the
Company’s success

The Company 1s commutted to the promotion of equal opportunities for all empleyees and creating a working environment that
fosters diversuy and inclusion The Company seeks 1o ensure that recruttment, talent selecuion and development, reward,
performance management and 1nternal promotion are all carried out solely on the grounds of ability, and are entirely free from any
form of discrimimation  To do this all reasonable adyustments are made, where 1t 1s appropnate to do so, to the Company’s policies,
practices, processes and terms and conditions of employment  The Company 1s also commited wherever possible, to employing
people who are disabled or become disabled during their career with the Company Diversity and inclusion are encouraged and
supported and 1n 2012 a Global Forum was establhished, sponsored by Group and Regional CEOs, to ensure further focus and
progress 1 this area

The Company 1s committed to fostering a constructive relationship with recognised independent trade unions, ensuring a regular and
open dialogue on business 1ssues and carly consultanon on changes affecung the workforce 1In the UK, Unite 1s formally
recognised through a partnershup agreement which covers collective consultation and bargaming on behalf of non management
employees The Management Association {TMA) represents managenal employees under a separate consultative agreement

The Company 15 committed to having an engaged and motivated workforce, beheving that 1s has a direct nmpact on customers’
experience and overall long-term success Every September, the Group runs a global employee survey of employees using the
Gallup Q12 quesuons, which measures the key drivers of engagement The survey 1s completed by circa three milhon people
globally and 1s open to all employees The Group has amongst the highesi participation of any chent Gallup works with and 1n 2012
saw the highest participation ever, wtth 94% of employees completing the survey

Since 2008, sigmficant progress has been made on improving employee engagement In 2012, a Grand Mean score of 4 29 (out of a
maximum score of 5) was achieved, which places the Group 1n Gallup’s top decile for companies with over 1,000 employces The
Group also won a range of awards in 2012 for us engagement programme ncluding  the Gallup Global Workplace Award,
presented to the world s most engaged and productive organisations, 6" in the Sunday Times Best Big Companies to Work For and
Overall Winner and Employee Engagement category winner at the prestigious 2012 CIPD People Management Awards

The Group has a long-standing philosophy of encouraging employee share ownership, operaung two HMRC-recogmsed share
schemes Sharebuild and Sharesave Currently, a tolal of 6,543 employees from across the Group participate 1n Sharesave,
contributing an average of £73 94 per month for the three year savings plan and an average of £61 17 for the five year savings plan
Sharebuild 1s offered to UK employees only and currently 34% of those eligible to join the plan participate in 1it, contributing an
average of £73 97 per month

The Company also encourages employees and their families to acquire products at a discounted rate  The Staff Saver Scheme 1n the
UK currently has approximately 11,500 Staff Saver policies in force Furthermore, the UK operates a flexible benefits scheme
which provides employees with additional opportunities to tailor their benefits package to meet individual circumstances  Qver
50% of employees elected to participate n the scheme 1n 2012

Employees are kept well informed of the overall performance and objecuves of the Group Communications are regularly provided
through face to face meetngs and presentations, by email, intranet articles and staff publications Key messages from the biannual
Group Leaders Conferences are disseminated to teams by the Group CEQ via WebEx and through local management

The Company actively encourages employees to become involved in supportung their local communities

Supplier payment policy

It 15 the Company’s policy to agree appropriate terms and conditions 1n advance with 1ts supphers and to make payment n
accordance with those terms and condiions, provided that the supplier has complied with them In most cases, agreements for the
supply of goods or services are made under standard terms of contract that lay down payment terms In the United Kingdom these

are available on request from UK Strategic Sourcing, Leadenhall Court, 1 Leadenhall Street, London EC3V 1PP

The Company’s outstanding indebtedness to trade creditors on 31 December 2012 amounted to £20m {2011 £31m), corresponding
to 15 (2011 23} days’ payment when averaged over the year
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Directors

The names of the current directors are tisted on page | Mr M G Culmer served as a director unts] his resignation on 14 May 2012
and Mr R J Clayton, Ms D P Cockrem, Mr 1 A Craston and Mr W R B McDonnell served as directors until their resignations on 13
February 2013 Mr R D Houghton and Mr D A Weymouth were appointed directors on 14 September 2012 and 13 February 2013
respectively  The other directors served throughout the year None of the directors had any interests 1n the shares of the Company

Auditor
Each ot the persons who 1+ a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that
» g0 far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

e the director has taken all steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himselt or herselt aware ol
any relevant audit information, and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

Ttus confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted 1n accordance with the provisions of <418 of the Compames Act 2006

At the 2013 Annual General Meeung the directors intend to recommend to sharcholders that they appoint KPMG LLP as external
auditor to the Company tor 2013 This follows the impending appointment ot the Group and Company’s current external auditor,
Deloitte LLP, to undertake additional consultancy work for the Group in Scandinavia which the directors, and they, felt could
impaur the percepuon ot therr independence

Going concern

In considering the appropriateness of the going concern basis, the Board has reviewed the Company’s ongong financial
commuments tor the next twelve months and beyond The Board's review included considerauon of the Company's underwriuing
plans, stiong regulatory capital surplus, diverse imsurance nisk prohle, considerable undrawn financing (acihities and highly hquid
mvestment portfolio As a result of this review the directors have sausfied themselves that it 1s appropriate to prepare these financal
statements on a going concern basis

By order of the Board

I M Mills

For and on behalt of
Roysun Limuted
Secrctary

19 February 2013




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance wiath apphcable law and
regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have elected
to prepare the {inancial statements 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom
Accounuing Standards and applicable law) Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they
are sausfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that
period In prepanng these financial statements, the directors are required to

select suntable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explamned 1in the financial statements, and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern bhasis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the company will
continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also responsible tor safeguarding the assets of the company
and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulariies




Independent auditor’s report to the members of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

We have audited the financial statements of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc for the year ended 31 December 2012 which
comprise the Profit and Loss account, the Statement of Total Recogmised Gamns and Losses, the Balance Sheet, the Reconciliation of
Movement 1n Shareholders’ Funds and the related notes 1 to 34 The financial reporting framework that has been apphed 1n their
preparation s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice), having regard to the statutory requirement for msurance companies to maintain equalisation provisions The nature of
equalisation provisions, the amounts set aside at 31 December 2012, and the effect of the movement in those provisions during the
year on shareholders’ funds, the balance on the general business technical account and profit before tax, are disclosed in note 23

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opimions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and the auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for bemng satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements i accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards
require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures n the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenial misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error  This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate te the insurer’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of
the financial statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information 1 the annual report to 1dentify material
mconsistencies with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent material misstaternents ot inconsistencies
we consider the implications for our report

Opuon on financial statements

In our opinion the financial statements
e give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2012 and of its profit for the year then
ended,
» have been properly prepared 1n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

Opimon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given 1n the Directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report 1 respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our
optnion >
» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us, or
the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or
certam disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or
avg not recetved all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Alexande¥ ArteTte/BSc ACA (Senior Statutory Auditor),
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP,

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor,

London, UK

19 February 2013




Technical account — General business

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Profit & loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Gross premiums written 6 4,293 3,576
Outward reinsurance premiums (622) 511
Premiums written, net of reimnsurance 3,671 3,065
Change 1n the gross provision for unearned premiums (225) (112)
Change n the provision for unearned premiums, remnsurers’ share 15 11
Earned premiums, net of reinsurance 3d6l 2,964
Claims paid
Gross amount (2,295) (2,500)
Reinsurers share 305 456
(1,990) (2,050)
Change in the provision for claims
Gross amount (288) 209
Rewnsurers’ share (51) (151)
(339 58
Claims incurred, net of reinsurance (2,329) {1,992)
Acqguisition costs (1,038) (840)
Change 1n deferred acquisition costs 23 17
Administrative expenses (289) (283)
Reinsurance commissions and profit participation 36 31
Net operating expenses (1,268) (1,075}
Amortisation of renewal rights 15 )] (2)
Balance on the technical account before change in equalisation provision (137) (105)
Change in the equalisation provision 23 30) (17
Balance on the Techmcal Account for General Business (167) (122)

All amounts relate to coninuming operations

The notes on pages 12 to 49 form an integral part of these accounts




Non-techmcal account

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Profit & loss account (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2012

2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Balance on the Technical Account for General Business (167) (122)
Investment income 12 790 801
Gains on the realisauon of investments 12 47 125
837 926
Unrealised gains/(losses) on trading investments / investment property 12 46 an
Revaluation of subsidiary undertakings 17 (187) (165)
Investment expenses, charges and interest 12 (122) (135)
Other charges ) (8)
Operating profit 406 425
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 406 425
Taxation on profit on ordinary activitics 13 7 25
Profit for the financial year attributable to shareholders 413 450
Current year discontinued and acquired operations do not form a maternal part of the figures above
Statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year ended 31 December 2012
2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Profit for the financial year 413 450
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains {6) 3
Tax credit/(charge) on foreign exchange losses 1 (2)
Movement 1n valuation of participating interests 18 2 (5)
Pension fund actuarial losses 10 (160) (48)
UK deferred tax credit atutributable to actuarial losses 10 35 10
Total recognised gans and losses relating to the year 285 408
Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds
Profit
Share Share and loss
Capital  Premmum account 2012 2011
Notes £m £m £m £m £m
Shareholders’ funds at 1 January 1.128 2,646 538 4,312 4,426
Shareholders’ recogmsed gains - - 285 285 408
Interest on subordinated debt net of tax 21 - - (22) (22) (22)
Dividends 14 - - - - (500)
Shareholders’ funds at 31 December 1,128 2,646 801 4,575 4312

The notes on pages 12 to 49 form an integral part of these accounts




Registered Number: 00093792

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Balance sheet

as at 31 December 2012

ASSETS 2012 2011
Notes £fm £m
Intangible assets 15 26 17
Investments
L.and and buildings 16 317 342
Investments in group undertakings and participating interests
Investment in subsidiary undertakings 17 10,676 10,733
Interesis 1n associated undertakings 18 14 11
10,690 10,744
Other financial investments
Shares and other variable yield securities and units 1n umt trusts 402 689
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 3,375 2,940
Loans and deposiis with credit institutions 76 39
16 3,853 3,668
Deposits with ceding undertakings 2 1
Total iInvestments 14,862 14,755
Reinsurers’ share of techmcal provisions
Provision for unearned premiums 164 151
Claims outstanding 810 867
974 1,018
Debtors
Debtors ansing out of direct insurance operations - policyholders 349 258
Debtors arising out of direct insurance operations - intermediaries 1,310 1,280
Debtors arising out of reinsurance operations 546 86
Amounts owed by group undertakings 1,467 1,328
Deferred taxation 25 186 166
Other debtors, including taxation 13 230 207
4,088 3,325
Other assets
Tangible assets 19 141 164
Cash at bank and 1n hand 222 173
363 337
Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued nterest and rent 55 49
Deferred acquisition costs 430 408
Other prepayments and accrued income 80 134
565 591
20,878 20,043
Pension fund asset 10 29 21
Total assets 20,907 20,064

The notes on page 12 to 49 form an integral part of these accounts




Registered Number: 00093792

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance ple

Balance sheet (continued)
as at 31 December 2012

LIABILITIES 2012 2011
Notes £m £m
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 20 1,128 1,128
Share premium account 2,646 2,646
Profit and loss account 801 538
Shareholders’ funds 4,575 4,312
Other capital mstruments
Subordinated loan note equity instruments 21 372 372
Funds attributable to equity holders 4,947 4,684
Subordinated habilities 21 492 492
Techmcal provisions
Proviston tor uncarned premiums 2,286 2,070
Claims outstanding 22 4,804 4,542
Equalisation provision 23 316 286
7,406 6,898
Provisions for other risks 24 95 93
Deposits received from reinsurers 3 7
Creditors
Creditors arising out ol direct insurance operations 123 122
Creditors arising out of remnsurance operalions 154 156
Amounts owed to crecht institutions 26 348 388
Amounts owed to group undertakings 6,896 6,846
Other creditors including taxation and social security 27 129 144
7,650 7,656
Accruals and deferred income 171 147
20,764 19,977
Pension fund liability 10 143 87
Total liabilities 20,907 20,064

The notes on pages 12 1o 49 form an integral part of these accounts

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 19 February 2013 and are signed on its behalt by

ot .

SPGLee

Director

11

|

R D Hougl

Director

n




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Notes to the accounts
1. Acecounting Policies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements are prepared 1n accordance with applicable UK accounting standards and 1n complhiance the Compames Act
2006, including schedule 3 of the accounting regulations 1ssued under the Act and the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP)
on Accounting for Insurance Business 1ssued by the Associaion of British Insurers in December 2005 (as amended 1in December
2006), having regard to the statutory requirement for insurance companies to mainiain equalisation provisions As noted 1n the
mvestment accounting policy the true and fair overnide has been adopted 1n respect of the valuation of the Company’s 1nvestment
properties and no depreciation 15 provided The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 400 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the requitement to prepare consohdated financial statements as 1t 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of RSA
Insurance Group plc, which prepares group accounts The financial statements have been prepared under the current value rules, as
permitted by Schedule 3 of the Compames Act 2006, on the going concern basis

In considening the approprateness of the going concern basis the Board has reviewed the Company’s ongoing financial
commitments for the next twelve months and beyond The Board's review included consideration of the Company's underwriting
plans, strong regulatory capital surplus, diverse msurance nsk profile, considerable undrawn financing factlities and highly hquid
investment porttolio As a result of this review the directors have satisfied themselves that 1t 1s appropriate to prepare these financial
stalements on a going concern basis

a) Insurance Contracts — product classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer sigmficant mnsurance nisk at the incepuon of the contract Insurance risk 1s
transferred when the Company agrees to compensate a policyholder 1f a specified uncertain future event (other than a change 1n a
financial variable) adversely affects the policyholder Any contracts not meeting the defimtion of an 1nsurance contract are classified
as mvestment contracts or derivalive contracts, as appropriale

b) General insurance business
1. Underwriting result

The underwrniting result, being the balance on the technical account before change 1n equalisation provisions, 1s accounted for on
an annual basis whereby the incurred cost of claims, commission and related expenses are charged against the carned proportion of
premiums, net of remsurance Premiums writien are accounted for in the year 1n which the contract 1s entered 1into and include
estimates where the amounts are not determined at the balance sheet date Prermums written exclude taxes and duties levied on
premiums and directly related expenses, e g commissions Premiums are earned as revenue over the perniod of the contract and are
calculated principally on a daily pro-rata basis Commussion and other acquisition costs incurred 1in wrniting the business are
deferred and amortised over the period 1n which the related premiums are earned

Claims paid represents all payments made duning the period whether artsing from events during that or earher penods
The balance on the General Business Technical Account 1s arrived at after taking account of changes 1n the equalisanon provision
1i. Technical provisions

The provision for unearned premiums represents the proportion of premiums wntten relating to periods of insurance coverage
subsequent to the balance sheet date after deduction of related acquisiion cosis

Acquisttion costs comprise the direct and indirect costs of obtaining and processing new mnsurance business Deferred acquisiiion
costs are amortised on the same basis as the related premiums carned

The provision for claims outstanding, whether reported or not, comprises the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at
the balance sheet date It includes related expenses and a deduction for the expected value of salvage and other recoveries The
provision s determined using the best information available of claims settlement patterns, forecast inflation and settlement of
clatms The provision for claims outstanding relating to long term permanent disabihity claims s also determined using recogmsed
actuarial methods




Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)
ii. Techmecal provisions (continued)

Provisions for claims outstanding, and related reinsurance recoveries are discounted where there is a parucularly long period from
incident to claims settlement and where there exists a sunable claims payment pattern from which to calculate the discount In
defining those claims with a long period from incident to claims settlement, those categories of claims where the average penod of
settlement 1s s1x years or more from the balance sheet date, has been used as a gmde The discount rate used 1s based upon an
investment return expected to be earned by assets, which are appropriate in magmitude and nature to cover the provisions for
claims outstanding being discounted during the penod necessary for the payment of such claims

Differences between the esumated cost and subsequent settlement of claims are dealt with in the technical account for the year in
which the claims are settled or 1n which the provisions for claims outstanding are re-estimated

At each balance sheet date an assessment 1s made of whether the provisions for unearned premiums are adequale A separate
provision 1s made, based on information available at the balance sheet date, for any estimated future underwriting losses relating 10
unexpired risks The provision 1s calculated after taking into account future investment income that 1s expected to be earned from
the assets backing the provisions for uncarned premiums (net of deferred acquisiton costs) The unexpired nisk provision as
assessed in aggregate for business classes which, 1n the opinion of the directors, are managed wgether

Equalisation provisions are established 1n accordance with the Financial Services Authonty s rules for insurers in the UK These
provisions, notwithstanding that they do not represent habilities at the balance sheet date as they are over and above the
anticipated ultimate cost of outstanding claims, are required by Schedule 3 to the Compames Act 2006 10 be included within
technical provisions 1n the batance sheet and any change n the provisions during the year 1s required 10 be shown 1n the General
Bustness Technical Account

in  Reinsurance ceded

Premiums payable 1n respect of remsurance ceded are recognised in the period m which the reinsurance contract 1s entered into
and nclude estimates where the amounts are not determined at the balance sheet date Premiums are expensed over the period of
the reinsurance contract. calculated principally on a daily pro-raita basis

A remsurance asset (reinsurers’ share of insurance contract habihites) 1s recognised to reflect the amount estimated to be
recoverable under the remnsurance contracts 1n respect of the provisions for outstanding claims reported under insurance contract
llabiliies  The amount recoverable from remsurers 1s imually valued on the same basis as the underlymmg provisions for
outstanding claims The amount recoverable 1s reduced when there 1s an event ansing after the imual recognition that provides
objective evidence that the Company may not receive all amounts due under the remsurance contract and the event has a reliably
measurable impact on the expected amount that will be recovered from the reinsurer

The remnsurers share of each unexpired nisk provision 1s recogmsed on the same basis

Annuities purchased by the Company to make payments under structured settlement arrangements are accounied for as
remsurance ceded 1f the Company remains hable for the settlement 1n the event of default by the annuity provider Any gain or
loss anising on the purchase of an annuity 15 recognised in the techmicat account at the date of purchase

¢) Translation of foreign currencies

Monetary assets and habiliues denominated n foreign currencies are translated 1nto sterling at rates ruling at the balance sheet date
Ditferences arising on retranslation are included within the profit and loss account  Transactions denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into sterling using the cumulative average rate for the financial year The resulung exchange differences are included
within the profit and loss account Non monetary items are translated at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction, and are
not subsequently retranslated

The results ot overseas operations are translated at the average rates for the peniod and their balance sheets at the rates ruling at the
balance sheet date The resulung exchange differences are taken to reserves

d) Investment return

Investment return 1s recogmsed 1n the Non-Technical Account and comprises all investment income, realised investment gains and
tosses and movements in unrealised gains and losses, net of investment expenses Dividends on equity investments are recognised
on the date at which the investment is priced ‘ex dividend’ Interest income 15 recogmsed using the effecuve nterest rate method
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)
d) Investment return (continued)
Realised gams and losses on investments are calculated as the difference between nel sales proceeds and purchase price

Movements in unrealised gains and losses on investments represent the difference between therr carrying value at the balance sheet
date and their purchase price or their carrying value at the last balance sheet date, together with the reversal of unrealised gains and
losses recogmsed 1n earlier accounting periods 1n respect of investment disposals 1n the current period

¢) Pension costs
Retirement Benefits

A defined contribution scheme 1s a pension scheme under which the Company pays fixed contributions mnto a separate enuity A
defined benefit scheme 1s a pension scheme that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and level of salary

Contributions to defined contribution penston schemes are charged 1n the period m which the employment services quahfying for
the benefit are provided Dnifferences between contributions payable 1n the year and contnbutions actually paid are shown as either
prepayments or accruals in the balance sheet

The amounts charged (or credited where relevant) in the Profit and Loss Account relaung to post retirement benefits in respect of
defined benefit schemes are as follows

the current service cost,

the past service costs for additional benefits granted n the current or earlier periods,
the interest cost for the period,

the impact of any curtailments or settlements during the period, and

the expected return on scheme assets (where relevant)

The current service cost in respect of defined benefit schemes comprises the present value of the addiuonal benefits attnbutable to
employees’ services provided during the period

The present value of defined benefit obligations and the present values of additional benefits accruing during the penod are
calculated, using the Projected Uit Method

Past service costs arise where additional benefits are granted The cost of providing additional benefits 1s recogmsed on a straight
line basis over the remaining period of service unul such benefits vest The cost of providing additional benefits that vest on their
introduction are recogmsed immediately

The calculation of the present value of accrued benefits includes an actuanal assumption of future nterest rates, which 1s used to
discount the expected ultimate cost of providing the benefits The discount rate 1s determined at each Balance Sheet date by
reference 10 current market yields on high quahity corporate bonds identified to match the currency and estimated term of the
obligations The interest cost for the period 1s calculated by multiplymg the discount rate determruned at the start of the period by the
defined benefit obligations during the penod

The change in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the changes in the fair value of scheme assets resulting from
any curtailments and settlements of scheme habiliues during the period are recogmsed 1n the Profit and Loss Account Addinonally,
any previously unrecogmsed past service costs related to these habilities are recognised 1n the gams or losses on settlement and
curtallment

The expected return on scheme assets for the penod 1s calculated, based upon the average rate of return (including both income and
changes 1n fair value), net of scheme expenses, expected over the remaining life of the related obligation on the actual assets held by
the scheme

Actuarial gamns and losses arise from changes to actuarial assumptions when revaluing future benefits, and from actual expenence m

respect of scheme habilities and nvestment performance of scheme assets being different from previous assumptions Actuanal
gains and losses are recognised 1n the Statement of Total Recogmised Gains and Losses
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)
e) Pension costs (continued)
The value recognised in the Balance Sheet for each individual post retirement scheme, 15 calculated as follows
the fair value a1 the Balance Sheet date of the scheme assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly,
munus the present value of defined benefit obligation of the scheme at the balance sheel date,

minus any past service cost not yet recogmsed, and
plus or minus the deferred tax liahlity or asset respectively relating to the defined benefit asset or lability

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is ternminated before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Company recognises termination benefits when 1t 13 demonstrably
commitied to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy Benefits falling due
more than twelve months after the Balance Sheet date are discounted to present value

) Share based payment

The value of the employee share options and other equity settled share based payments 1s calculated at fair value at the grant date
using appropnate and recagmised option pricing models The value of habihities in respect of cash settled share based payment
transactions are based upon the fair value of the awards at the balance sheet date

Vesting conditions, other than those based upon market conditions, are not taken into account when estimating the fair value of such
awards but are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments included in the ulimate measurement of the
transaction amount The value of the awards 1s recognised as an expense on a systematic basis over the period during which the
cmploymeni services are provided

g) Taxation

Current tax, based on profits and income for the year, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts
expected to be pard (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date

Deferred tax 1s recogmised 1n respect of all uming differences that have onginated but not reversed at the balance sheet date where
transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right o pay less tax i the future have occurred at
the balance sheet date Timing differences are differences between the Company’s taxable profits and 1ts results as stated in the
financial statements that anise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in pertods different from those 1n which they
are recognised in the financial statements

A net deferred tax asset 1s regarded as recoverable and therefore recognised only to the extent that, on the basis of all available
evidence, 1t can be regarded as more likely than not that there will be surtable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the
underlying timing differences can be deducted A deferred tax asset 1s recogmsed for relief for trading losses or other losses only to
the extent that the directors anticipate that suitable profits will absorb such lasses in the future

Deferred 1ax 1s not recognised when fixed assets are revalued unless by the balance sheet date there 1s a binding agreement to sell
the revalued assets and the gain or loss expected to anse on sale has been recognised n the financial statements Neither 15 deferred
tax recogrsed when fixed assets are sold and 1t 1s more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over, being charged to tax
only if and when the replacement assets are sold

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed 1n respect of the retained earmngs of overseas subsidharies and associates only to the extent that, at the
balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distnibute past earnings n future has been
entered into by the subsidiary or associate

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply mn the periods 1n which the tming differences are expected to

reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred 1ax 1s
measured on a non-discounted basis
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)
h) Operating leases
Payments made under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease
i} Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill, being the difference between the cost of an umincorporated business acquisition and the Company’s interest in the net far
value of the idenufiable assets and lLiabilities acquired, 15 1mitially capitalised 1n the balance sheet at cost and 1s subsequently
recogmised at cost less accumulated amortisation and any imparrment losses  The cost of the acquisition 1s the amount of cash pad
and the fair value of other purchase consideration given together with directly related expenses Goodwill 1s regarded as having a
limated useful life that does not exceed twenty years and 1s amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful hfe

Goodwill 1s subject to an impairment review at the end of the first full financial year following the initial recognition of the goodwill
and, 1n other periods, if events or changes 1n circumstances indicate that ats carrying value may not be recoverable in full Where the
review reveals that the carrying amount 1s more than the recoverable amount, an impairment 1s recogmsed

Other 1intangible assets compnse renewal rights These assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation  Amortsation on
renewal rights 1s calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost over the esumated useful life, which 1s normally
estimated to be between 3 and 12 years

j} Investment property

Investment properties are shown at market value and are valued annually by independent professionally qualified valuers at open
market value Unrealised gains and losses are recognised in the Non-Technical Account

The Companies Act requires properties 10 be depreciated over their expected useful economic hves The directors consider that
depreciation of investment properties would not give a true and fair view In accordance with Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice 19 *Accounting for Investment Properties’, no depreciation 1s provided on these properties on the basis that depreciation 1s
already reflected in the annual valuations The amounts attributed to this factor by the valuers cannot reasonably be separately
identified or quantified

It 1s the Company’s practice to maintain properties occupied by the Company 1n a continual state of sound repair Accordingly the
directors consider that the economic lives of these properties and their residual values, based on prices prevailing at the time of
acquisition or subsequent valuation, are such that any depreciation 1s insigmficant and 1s thus not provided

k) Investments in subsidianes

Investments it subsidiaries are valued at net asset value Reductions in the carrying value of investments 1n subsidiaries below
historic cost and reversals of such reductions are taken to the profit and loss account Other differences between net asset values and
book values of investments 1n subsidiaries are taken to the revaluation reserve

1) Interests in associates

Associates are entities over which the Company has sigmficant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the votng rights Investments 1n associates are accounted as investments 1n participating interests and are
carried in the balance sheet at a directors’ valuation (based upon the Company's share of the net current assets of the associate)
Changes 1a the valuation of associates are recognised 1n the Statement of Total Recogmsed Gains and Losses Dividends from
assoclates are accounted for as income 1n the period in which the Company becomes entitled to receive the dividend

m) Financial assets

A financial asset 15 imtially recogmsed, on the date the Company commuts to purchase the asset, at farr value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to 1ts acquisition A financial asset 1s derecogmised when the nghts to receive cashflows from the
investment have expired or have been transferred and the Company has also transferred substantally the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset
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: Notes to the accounts (continued)
1. Accounting Policies (continued)
m) Fmancial assets (continued)

Where the following conditions are sansfied, financial assets (other than denivatives and onginated loans and receivables) are
designated upon 1mtial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss The conditions are that the perfermance of the assets 1s
evaluated on a total return basis (including the changes i fair values) 1n accordance with a documented 1nvestment sirategy and
information 1s provided internally to the Company's key management personnel on this basis

On subsequent measurement, investments are measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised 1n the Non-Techmical
Account Omginated loans and recervables are measured at amortised cost

n) Estimation of the fair value of financial assets and habilities other than investments n subsidiaries
The methods and assumptions used by the Company 1n estimaung the fair value o} financial assets and habilities are

s  tor fixed maturity securities, fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices  Where market prices are not readily
available, fair values are estimated using cither values obtained from quoted market prices of comparable secuniues or
estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a current market rate applicable to the yield, credit quality and
maturity of the investment,

e  for equity securities fair values are based upon quoted market prices,

s if the market for a financial asset 1s not active, the Company establishes fair value by using valuanion techmques These
include the use of recent arm s length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substannally the same, discounted
cash flow analysis and option pricing models,

e for mortgage loans on reat estate and collateral loans, fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow calculations based
upon prevalling market rates,

¢  for cash, short- term investments, commercial paper, other assets, habilities and accruals carrying amounts approximate to far
value

e« for notes bonds and loans payable, fair values are determined by reference 10 quoted market prices or estimated using
discounted cash flow calculations based upon prevailing market rates Loan capntal 1s carried at amortised cost and when this 1s
different from fair value this ts shown in the relevant note  Fair value in this case 1s based on discounted future cash flows For
borrowings that carry a variable rate of interest (other than loan capital), carrying values approximate to fair values, and

¢ tor denvatives, fair values are generally based upon quoted market prices

o) Derivatives

Derivatives are recogmsed 1n the Balance sheet on a trade date basis and are carried at fair value Dernivatives are camed as assets
when fair value 15 positive and as habilines when fair value 1s negauve  All gains and losses ansing are taken to the Non-techmcal
account The Company does not hold or i1ssue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

p) Tangible assets

Tangible assets comprise equipment and computer software These assets are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses Depreciation 1s calculated to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of the
tangible fixed assets on a straight line basis over their expecied useful lives as follows equipment 3 to 10 years and computer
software 3 10 5 years

q) Subordinated loans

Subordinated loans are classificd according to their contractual terms

Subordimated loans are classified as a separate class of capital when the terms of the loan contain no obhigation on the Company to
deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity or to exchange financial assets or financial habihties with another entity
under condiuons that are potentially unfavourable to the Company and contain no provision to settle the loan through the 1ssue of
equity instruments of the Company Interest paid on such subordinated loans 1s not recogmsed in the profit and loss account and 15
deducted from she profit and loss reserve when paiud

Subordmated loans are classified as habilities when the conditions above are not met Interest costs on such subordinated loans are

calculated using the effective interest method and are recogmsed n the Non-technical account
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies
Introduction

One of the purposes of insurance 1s to enable policyholders to protect themselves against uncertain future events  Insurance
companies accept the transfer of uncertainty from policyholders and seek to add value through the aggregation and management of
these risks

The uncertainty 1nherent 1n nsurance 1s nevitably reflected in the financial statements of insurance companies
The uncertainty 1n the financial statements principally arises 1n respect of the insurance contract habilities of the company

The insurance coniract liabilimies of an insurance company include the provision for unearned premiums and unexpired rnisks and the
provision for outstanding claims  Unearned premiums and unexpired nisks represent the amount of income set aside by the
company to cover the cost of claims that may arise during the unexpired period of risk of insurance policies in force at the end of the
reporung period OQOutstanding claims represent the company’s estimate of the cost of settlement of claums that have occurred by the
end of the reporting period but have not yet been finally settled

In addition 10 the nherent uncertainty of having to make provision for future events, there 1s also considerable uncertainty as regards
the eventual outcome of the claims that have occurred by the end of the reporung period but remain unsettled This includes claims
that may have occurred but have not yet been notified to the company and those that are not yet apparent to the insured

As a consequence of this uncertanty, the insurance company nceds to apply sophisticated esumation techniques to determine the
appropriate provisions

Estimation techniques

Claims and unexpired risks provisions are determined based upon previous clasms experience, knowledge of events and the terms
and conditions ot the relevant policies and on iterpretation of circumstances  Parucularly relevant 1s expenience with similar cases
and historical claims payment trends The approach also includes the consideration of the development of loss payment trends, the
potential longer term significance of large events, the levels of unpaid claims, legislative changes, judicial decisions and economuc,
pohtical and regulatory conditions

Where possible the Company adopts multiple techmques to estimate the required level of provisions This assists in giving greater
understanding of the trends inherent in the data being projected The Company’s estimates of losses and loss expenses are reached
after a review of several commonly accepted actuarial projection methodologies and a number of different bases to determine these
provisions These include methods based upon the following

the development of previously settled «laims, where payments to date are extrapolated for each prior year,
estimates based upon a projection of claims numbers and average cost,
notified claims development, where noufied claims to date for each year are extrapolated based upon observed development of
earhier years, and
e expected loss ranos

In additton, the Company uses other methods such as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson method, which combines featurcs of the above
methods  The Company also uses bespoke methods for specialist classes of business In selecung its best estimate, the Company
considers the appropriateness of the methods and bases to the individual circumstances of the provision class and underwnting year
The process 1s designed to select the most appropniate best estimate

Large claims impacting each relevant business class are generally assessed separately, being measured either at the face value of the
loss adjusters’ esumates or projected separately 1n order to allow for the future development of large claims

Provisions are calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries A separate estumate 15 made of the amounts that will be recoverable
from remnsurers based upon the gross provisions and having due regard to collectabihty

The claims provisions are subject to close scruuny both within the Company’s business units and at Group Corporate Centre In
addimon, for major classes where the risks and uncertainties inherent 1n the provisions are greatest, regular and ad hoc detailed
reviews are undertaken by advisers who are able to draw upon their specialist expertise and a broader knowledge of current industry
trends 1n claims development  As an example, the Company’s exposure to asbestos and environmental pollution 1s examined on this
basis The results of these reviews are considered when establishing the appropnate levels of provisions for outstanding claims and
unexpired periods of nsk
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies (continued}
Estimation techniques (continued)

It should be emphasised that the esumanon techniques for the determination of 1nsurance contract habihties involve obtaimng
corroborative evidence from as wide a range of sources as possible and combiming these to form the overall esumate This
technique means that the estimate 1s inevitably determimistic rather than stochastic

The pension assets and pension and post reurement liabihties are calculated 1n accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 17
(FRS 17) The assets, habihities and profit & loss account charge, calculated in accordance with FRS 17, are sensiive to the
assumptions made from time to time, including inflation, 1nterest rate, investment return and mortality FRS 17 compares, at a given
date, the current market value of a pension fund’s assets with 1ts long term habihties which are calculated using a discount rate 1n
Iine with yields on ‘AA’ rated bonds of suitable duranon and currency  As such, the financial position of a pension fund on this
basis 1s highly sensitive to changes 1n bond rates and will also be impacted by changes 1n equity markets

Uncertainties and contingencies
The uncertainty arising under insurance contracts may be characterised under a number of specific headings, such as

uncertainty as to whether an event has occurred which would give rise to a policyholder suffering an 1nsured loss,
uncertainty as to the extent of policy coverage and hmits applicable,

uncertainty as to the amount of insured loss suffered by a policyholder as a result of the event occurring, and
uncertainty over the timing of a settlement to a policyholder for a loss suffered

* 0 & 2

The degree of uncertainty will vary by policy class according to the characteristics of the tnsured risks and the cost of a claim will be
determined by the actual loss suffered by the policyholder

There may be sigmficant reporung lags between the occurrence of the nsured event and the time 1t 15 actually reported to the
Company Following the identification and notification of an insured loss, there may still be uncertainty as to the magmtude and
uming of the settlement of the claam There are many factors that will determune the level of uncertainty such as inflation,
inconsistent judicial interpretations and court judgments that broaden policy coverage beyond the intent of the original insurance,
legislative changes and claims handling procedures .
The establishment of msurance contract liabihities 1s an inherently uncertain process and, as a consequence of this uncertainty, the
eventual cost of settlement of outstanding claims and unexprred risks can vary substantially from the imitial estimates, parucularly
for the Company’s long tail lines of business The Company seeks to provide appropnate levels of claims provision and provision
for unexpired risks taking the known facts and experience 1nto account

The Company has exposures to risks 1n each class of business within each operating segment that may develop and that could have a
material 1impact upon the Company’s financial positon The geographic and insurance nsk diversity within the Company’s
portfoho of 1ssued insurance policies mean it 1s not possible to predict whether matenal development will occur and, 1f 1t does occur,
the location and the uming of such an occurrence The estimation of insurance contract liabilities involves the use of judgments and
assumplions that are specific to the insurance risks within each territory and the parbicular type of insurance nisk covered The
diversity of the insurance nisks results in 1t not being possible 1o identify individual judgments and assumptions that are mere likely
than others to have a material impact on the future development of the insurance contract habilities

The sections below 1dentify a number of specific risks relating to asbestos and environmental claims There may be other classes of
risk which could develop 1n the future and that could have a material impact on the Company’s financial posiion

The Company evaluates the concentration of exposures (o individual and cumulative insurance risk and establishes 1ts reinsurance
pohicy to reduce such exposure to levels acceptable to the Company

Asbestos and environmental claims

The estimation of the provisions for the ultimate cost of claims for asbestos and environmental pollution 18 subject to a range of
uncertainties that 1s generally greater than those encountered for other classes of insurance business  As a result 1t 1s not possible to
determune the future development of asbestos and environmental claims with the same degree of rehability as with other types of
claims, particularly 1n pertods when theones of law are in flux  Consequently, traditional techmques for estimaung claims
provisions cannot wholly be relied upon and the Company employs specialised techmiques to determine provisions using the
extensive knowledge of both internal asbestos and environmental pollution experts and external legal and professional advisors
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
2, Estimation Technigues, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies {continued)
Asbestos and environmental claims {continued)
Factors contributing to this higher degree of uncertainty wnclude

s the long delay 1n reporting claims from the date of exposure (for example cases of mesothehoma can have a fatent pened of up
to 40 years) This makes estimating the ultimate number of claims the Company will receive particularly difficult,

1ssues of allocation of responsibility among potentially responsible parues and insuvrers,

emerging court decisions and the possibility of retrospective legislative changes increasing or decreasing insurer hability,

the tendency for social trends and factors 10 influence court awards,

developments pertaiming to the Company’s ability to recover reinsurance for claims of this nature, and

for US habiliues from the Company’s London market business, developments 1n the tactics of US plainuff lawyers and court
decisions and awards

Potential change in discount rate for lump sum damages awards

Legmslative changes may atfect the Company s liability 1n respect of unsettled claims in the use of predetermined factors used by
courts to calculate compensation claims  For example, 1n the UK, standard formulae are used as an actuarial measure by the courts
to assess lump sum damages awards for future losses (typically loss of earmngs arising from personal injuries and fatal accidents)
The calibrauion of these standard formulae can be updated by the UK Government and the Lord Chancellor may review the
methodology to be applied in deiermining the discount rate to calculate the appropriate seitlements, or the discount rate iself, in due
course A reduchon 1n the prescribed discount rate would increase the value of future claims settlements

Acquisitions and disposals

The Company makes acquisiiions and disposals of businesses as part of its normal operations All acquisitions are made after due
diligence, which will include, amongst other marters, assessment of the adequacy of claims reserves, assessment of the
recoverability of reinsurance balances, inquines with regard to outstanding hugation and 1mnquines of local regulators and taxation
authoriues Constderation 1s also given to potential costs, risks and 1ssues 1n relation to the ntegration of any proposed acquisitions
with exisung RSA operations The Company will seek to receive the benefit of appropnate contractual representations and
warranties 1n conneciion with any acquisition and, where necessary, additional indemmfications in relation to specific risks although
there can be no guarantee that these processes and any such protection will be adequaie in all circumstances The Company may
also provide relevant representations, warranties and indemmities to counterparties on any dispesal While such representations,
warranties and indemnities are essential components of many contractual relationships, they do not represent the underlying purpose
for the transaction

These clauses are customary 1n such contracts and may from time 1o tume lead to the Company receiving claims from counterparties
Contracts with third parties

The Company enters 1nto joint ventures, outsour¢ing contracts and distribution arrangements with third parties 1n the normal course
of 1ts business and 1s rehant upon those third parties being willing and able to perform their obligations 1n accordance with the terms
and conditions of the contracts

Litigation, disputes and investigations

The Company, in common with the insurance industry 1n general, 15 subject to hiigation, mediation and arbitration, and regulatory,
governmental and other sectoral inquiries and investigations 1r the normal course of its business The directors do not believe that
any current mediation, arbitration, regulatory, governmental or sectoral inquiries and nvesugations and pending or threatened
htigation or dispute will have a matenal adverse effect on the Company’s financial positicn, although there can be no assurance that
losses or financial penalties resulting from any current mediation, arbitration, regulatory, governmental or sectoral inquines and
ivestigations and pending or threatened litigation or dispute will not matenally affect the Company’s financial position or cash
flows for any period
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies (continued)
Reinsurance

The Company 1s exposed to disputes on, and defects 1n, contracts with its rensurers and the possibthty of default by
11s reinsurers  The Company 15 also exposed to the credit nsk assumed 1n fronung arrangements and to potential remnsurance
capacity constraints  In selecting the remsurers with whom the Company conducts business, 1ts strategy 1s to seek remnsurers with
the best combinaton of financial strength, price and capacity The Group Corporate Centre publishes internally a list of authonsed
reinsurers who pass the Group’s selection process and which its operatons may use for new transactions

The Company momnitors the financial strength of its reinsurers, including those to whom risks are no longer ceded Allowance 15
made in the financial position for non recoverability due to remsurer default by providing, 1n line with Group standards,

having regard to companies on the Group’s ‘Watch List” The “Watch List’ 1s the hist of companies whom the Group’s directors
believe will not be able to pay amounts due 1n full

Investment risk

The Company 1s exposed to market risk and credit risk on 1ts invested assets Market risk includes the risk of potennal losses from
adverse movements 1n market rates and prices including mterest rates, equity prices, property prices and foreign exchange rates The
Company’s exposure to market nisks 1s controiled by the setting of mvestment limits 1n line with the Group’s nisk appetite From
tme to uime the Company also makes use of denivative financial instruments 1o reduce exposure to adverse fluctuations 1n foreign
exchange rates and equity markets The Company has strict controls over the use of denvative instruments

Credit nsk includes the non performance of contractual payment obligations on invested assets and adverse changes 1n the credit
worthiness of 1nvested assets including exposures to 1ssuers or counterparties for bonds, equities, deposits and derivatives Limits
are set at both a portfolho and counterparty level based on likelthood of default to manage the Group’s overall credit profile and
specific concentrations within nisk appetite The Company’s insurance investment portfolios are concentrated 1n hsted securities
with very low levels of exposure to assets without quoted market prices The Company uses model based analysis to venfy asset
values when market values are not readily available

The current economic crisis adds further uncertainty and volatility to underlying levels of market and credit nisk in the Eurozone
The Company has, however, very hmited direct exposure via 11s investment portfolio to the Eurozone and to the peripheral
Eurczone countries 1n particular  As with all other invested assets, limits are set in line with the Group’s nsk appeute  The
Company continues to monitor the situation closely and take action to manage 1ts exposure as required

Rating environment

The ability of the Company to write certain types of insurance business 1s dependent on the maintenance of the appropriate credit
ratings from the rating agencies The RSA Insurance Group has the objective of maintaining single ‘A’ ratings At the present time
the ratings are ‘A+’ (negative outlook) from S&P and ‘A2’ (stable outlook) from Moody’s Any worsening n the ratings could
have an adverse impact on the ability of the RSA Insurance Group and the Company to write certain types of general nsurance
business

In assessing credit nsk 1n relation to reinsurance and investments, the RSA Insurance Group takes into account a variety of factors,
including credit raing If any such rating changes, or 1s otherwise reassessed, this has potential 1mplications for the related
exposures ’

Foreign exchange risk

The Company publishes financial statements 1n Pounds Sterling  Therefore, fluctuations 1n exchange rates used to translate other
currencies, particularly other European currencies and the Canadian dollar, into Pounds Sterhing will impact the reported financial
position, results of operations and cash flows from period to period  These fluctuations 1n exchange rates will also impact the Pound

Sterling value of and the return on the Company’s 1nvestments

Income and expenses for each profit & loss account item are translated at average exchange rates  Assets and habilities, as reported
in the balance sheet, are translated at closing exchange rates at the end of the reporting period
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2. Estimation Techniques, Risks, Uncertainties and Contingencies (continued)
Regulatory environment

The legal, regulatory and accounting environment 1s subject to significant change in many of the junsdicuons 1n which the
Company operates, including developments n response to changes n the economic and poliical environment and the recent
financial crisis  The Company continues to monitor the developments and react accordingly

The new solvency framework for insurers being developed by the EU, referred to as ‘Solvency II', 1s intended in the medium term
to achieve greater harmomsation of approach across EU member states to assessing capital resources and requirements  There
remains continued uncertainty as delays 1n agreeing the rules have caused the planned implementation date of 2014 (o be delayed
The Company 1s actively participating n shaping the outcome through its involvement with European and UK regulators and
industry bodies, whilst appropriately progressing its implementauon plans and the directors are confident that the Company will
conhinue to meet all future regulatory capital requirements

3. Risk Management
Introduction

RSA Insurance Group plc (the Group), of which the Company 1s an important part, 1s managed along divistonal lines The Company
transacts the majonty of the Group’s UK business The directors of the Company have considered whether the Group approach to
strategy, risk management, performance review and custody of assets fully meets the needs of the Company as a separate regulated
entity They have concluded that it does The following discussion sets out the approach of the Group, and hence of the Company, to
risk management

Risk Management

As an insurance company, the Company 1s fundamentally concerned with the management ot nsks This note summarises the key
risks to the Group, and hence the Company, and the steps taken to manage them

The Group’s Board of Directors defines the risk appetite of the orgamsation The Group employs a comprehensive Risk
Management System to 1dentify, measure, manage, monitor and report the risks ansing as a result of operating the business The
Risk Management System includes a comprehensive suite of nisk policies, procedures, measurement, reporting and monitoring
techmques and a senies of stress iests and scenario analyses to ensure that the Group’s risk exposures are managed appropriately

The Group 1s exposed to financial nisk through 1ts financial assets, financial habilities (borrowings), reinsurance assets and insurance
contract habihties In particular the key financial risk 1s that the proceeds from the realisation of i1s financial assets are not sufficient
to fund the obhigations arsing from 1ts insurance coniracts

The Group manages its financial assets within a framework that has been developed to seek to ensure the ability to meet its
obligations under 1nsurance contracts A key principle belund this process 1s to hold assets of sufficient credit qualny and currency
that provide a broad match against the habihities ansing from insurance contracts

The components of insurance, reinsurance, operational, credit, market and hquidity rnisk management are addressed below
Insurance risk

The Company’s nsurance activities are primarily concerned with the pnicing, acceptance and management of risks from s
customers In accepting nisks the Company 1s commtting to the payment of claims and therefore these risks must be understood and

controlled Disciplined underwriing, encompassing risk assessment, risk management, pricing and exposure control 1s critical to the
Company’s success
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Underwriting and claims nisks

The Company manages these risks through its underwnung strategy, adequate remnsurance arrangements and proactive claims
handling The underwnting strategy aims to ensure that the underwritten rnisks are well diversified 1n terms of type and amount ot
nisk, industry and geography

Pricing for the Company’s products 1s generally based upon histonical claims frequencies and claims severity averages, adjusted for
inflauon and modelled catastrophes trended forward to recogmise anticipated changes in claims patterns  While claims remain the
Company’s principal cost, the Company also makes allowance 1n the pricing procedures for acquisitton expenses, admimstration
expenses, vestment income, the cost of remnsurance and for a profit loading that adequately covers the cost of the caputal the
Company exposes to nsk

Underwriting hmits are 1n place to enforce appropriate risk selection crteria For example, the Company has the nght not 1o renew
mndividual pohcies 1t can impose deductibles and 1t has the night to reject the payment of a fraudulent claim In certain territories,
legislation imposes a minimum amount for which employers can be hable for claims for compensation from employees njured at
work These lhiabilittes are usually insured under an employers’ liability (or similar) insurance policy All policies 1ssued by the
Company comply with minimum statutory requirements

All of the Company’s underwriters have specific hcences that set clear parameters tor the business they can underwrite, based on the
experience of the individual underwniter  Additionally, the Group has a centrally managed forum looking at Group underwnting
1ssues, reviewing and agreeing underwning direcuon and setting policy and direcuves where approprnialc  The Group has a
quarterly portfolio management process across all its business units, which provides a consisteni assessment of each portfolio
performance against a set of key performance indicators  Under the portfolio management system, key nish indicators are tracked to
monitor emerging trends, opportumties and risks and, on an annual basis, a review forum of business and underwriuing leaders
undertake a detailed review of each portfolic utihising data from the quarterly reviews

The Company has developed enhanced methods of recording exposures and concentrations of risk  This means that there 1s greater
control of exposures in high nisk areas and enables a prompt response to claims from pohicyholders should there be a catastrophic
event such as an earthquake

Remsurance arrangements n place include proporuonal, excess of loss, stop loss and catastrophe coverage The effect of such
reinsurance arrangements 1s that the Group should not suffer total net insurance losses beyond the Group's risk appetite in any one
year

Reserves — an overview

The Company establishes loss reserves to account for the anucipated ulumate costs of all losses and related loss adjustment
expenses (LAE) on losses that have already occurred The Company establishes reserves for reported losses and LAE, as welt as for
incurred but not yet reported (IBNR) losses and unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) Loss reserve estimates are based on
known facts and on interpretation of circumstances including the Company’s expenence with stmilar cases and historical claims
payment trends The Company also considers the development of loss payment trends, levels of unpaid claims, judicial decisions
and economic conditions

The Company uses a vanely of statistical techniques and a number of different bases 10 set reserves, depending on the business unit
and line of business tn question The Company’s reserving managers consider claims developments separately for each Line of
business and subdivide certain hines of business by major claim types or sub classifications of business Large claims impacting
each relevant account are also generally assessed separately, either being reserved at the face value of the loss adjusters estimates or
projected separately in order to allow for the future development of large claims

The Group has a Group Reserving Commitice consisiing of the Group Chief Executive Officer, Chel Financial Officer, Group
Underwniing and Claims Director, Group Chief Actuary and Group Chief Risk Officer A similar commutiee has been estabhshed
1n each of the Group's major operating segments The Group Reserving Commuttee monttors the decisions and judgements made by
the business umts as to the level of reserves recommended and makes the final decision on the reserves to be included within the
financial statements (‘Management Best Esumate’)  In making its judgement, the Group Reserving Commuttee’s aim 15 that, over
the longer term, reserves should be more likely to run off favourably than adversely However, there can be no assurance that
reserves will not develop adversely and exceed the Management Best Esimate  In making ns judgement of the Management Best
Estimate of reserves to include n the financial statements, the Group Reserving Commuttee adopts the following approach
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3. Risk Management (continued)
Reserves — an overview (continued)

e The Company’s actuaries provide an indication of ulumate losses together with an assessment of risks and possible
favourable or adverse developments that may not have been fully reflected 1n calculaung these indications At the end of
2012 these nisks and developments include the possibility of future legislative change having retrospective effect on open
claims, changes in claims settlement procedures potenually leading to future claims payment patterns differing from
historical experience, the possibility of new types of claim, such as disease ¢laims, emerging from business written several
years ago, general uncertainty 1n the claims environment, the emergence of latent exposures such as asbestos, the outcome
of hitigation on claims received, failure to recover remsurance and unanncipated changes 1n claims inflation

e  Considerauon 1s also made of the views of internal peer reviewers of the reserves and ot other parties including actuaries,
legal counsel, risk directors, underwriters and claims managers

s  Consideranon 1s made of how previous actuarial indications have developed
In forming 1ts cellective judgement, the Committee considers this information as a whole
Emerging and legal risks

These are nisks that have been 1dentfied as potennally affecting the Group but are not able to be quantified Existing or potential
future nisk exposures are wdentified and nvestigated 1n a structured way, using 1nternal and external resources, and actions to
mitigate, contain or remove these risks are taken

In the ordinary course of 1ts insurance activittes, the Company is routinely involved 1n legal or arbitration proceedings with respect
to habilities, which are the subject of policy claims However, as insurance industry practices and legal, judicial, social and other
environmental conditions change, unexpected and unintended 1ssues related to claims and coverage may emerge These 1ssues can
have a negative effect on the Company’s financial results by erther extending coverage beyond 1ts underwriung intent or by
increasing the number and size of claims

In addition, to the extent that legal decisions 1n any of the junsdictions 1n which the Group operates worldwide may increase court
awards, and that the impact may be applied prospectively or retrospectively, claims reserves may prove insufficient to cover actual
losses, LAE or future policy benefits In such an event, or where 1t has been previously estimated that no liability would apply, the
Company would add to 1ts reserves and incur a charge to earnings Such insufficiencies could have a matenal adverse effect on the
Company’s future financial position, financial results and cash flows

Remsurance risk

The Company 1s exposed to both multiple insured losses and losses ansing out of a single occurrence, for example a natural penl
event such as a hurnicane, flood or an earthquake

The ability of the business umts in each territory 1o assess the aggregation nisk of a single event impacting on thousands of
policyholders 1s vital The Group employs proprietary exposure measurement systems to assess these nisks In some markets,
particularly 1n the UK, the Group has in addition developed its own expertise 1n catastrophe modelling that 1s used 1n conjunction
with outside consultants The accurate estimation of the potential expected maximum loss for a catastrophe 1s critical and 1s the
primary factor considered in designing the Group’s catastrophe remnsurance programme

The expertise within the Group on catastrophe modelling 1s shared through the Werldwide Remsurance Practice Group, which also
provides an overview of the Groupwide catastrophe exposures and reinsurance adequacy A remnsurance programme 15 considered to
be ‘adequate’ only 1f 1t covers possible events that could happen 1 at least 199 out of 200 years This 15 referred to as the ‘1 1 200
year expected maximum loss’

The Group uses financial analysis models to assess the risk and reward effecis of different reinsurance structures and prices A

strategic review was undertaken during 2012, the result of which 1s to improve the financial performance of the Group through
rebalancing retention levels whilst continuing to protect capital and manage volatility
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Reinsurance nsk (centinued)

All of the Group's operations are required to purchase retnsurance within agreed local remsurance appetite parameters The Group
Corporate Centre authorises the operations’ proposed treaty purchases to check that they at least meetl the Group’s appetite, for
example the ‘1 1n 200 year’ standard for catastrophe nsk Group Corporate Centre also checks 1o see that total Group exposures are
within the limits set out above and also are consistent with the required risk based capital In addition local facultative arrangements
may be purchased where deemed appropriate

The Group remains primarily hiable as the direct insurer on all nsks remnsured, although the remsurer 1s liable to the Group to the
extent of the insurance risk ceded

Operational risk

Operauonal risk is the risk of direct or indirect losses resulting from human factors, external events and 1nadequate or failed internal
processes and systems Operational risks are inherent 1n the Group’s operations and are typical of any large enterprise Major
sources of operational risk include operational process reliability, information security, outsourcing of operations, dependence on
key suppliers, implementation of strategic and operational change, mtegration of acquisitions, fraud, human error, customer service
quality, madequacy of business continuity arrangements, recruitment, traiming and retention of staff, and social and environmental
impacts

The Company manages operational risk using a range of techniques and tools to identify, monitor and mitigate its operational risk 1n
accordance with Group’s nisk appetite These tools inciude Risk and Control Self Assessments, Key Risk Indicators {e g fraud and
service tndicators), Scenario Analyses and Loss Reporung In addition the Group has developed a number of contingency plans
including Incident Management and Business Contunuity Plans Quantitative analysis of operational risk exposures matenal to the
Company 15 used to inform decisions on the averall amount of capital held and the adequacy of contingency arrangements

Credit nsk

Credit risk 1s the risk of loss of value of the financial assets due to counterparties failling to meet all or part of their obligations The
Board Risk Commuttee (BRC) 15 responsible for ensuring that the Board approved Group credit risk appetite 1s not exceeded This 1s
done through the setting and imposition of Group policies, procedures and limits  In defining 1is appetite for credit nsk the Group
looks at exposures al both an aggregate and business unit level disunguishing between credit risks incurred as a result of offsetting
msurance risks or operating n the nsurance market (e g remsurance credit risks and risks to receiving premiums due from
policyholders and intermediaries) and credit risks incurred for the purposes of generating a return (e g 1nvested assets credit risk)

Limits are set at both a portfolio and counterparty level based on likelthood of default, derived from the rating of the counterparty, to
ensure that the Group’s overall credit profile and specific concentrations are managed and controlled within risk appetite Financial
assets are graded according to company standards AAA 1s the highest possible raung Investment grade financial assets are
classified within the range of AAA to BBB rauings For nvested assets, restrictions are placed on each of the Group’s investment
managers as to the level of exposure to various rating categenes including unrated securities
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Credit risk (continued)

The following table provides information regarding the aggregated credit nsk exposure for financial assets of the Company as at 31
December 2012

Credit rating relating to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired Total of

. financial
assets that

are neither

past due nor

AAA AA A BBB <BBB  Not rated impaired
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities 1,345 521 1,246 209 39 15 3,375
Other finanaal assets 1 - - - - 14 15
Short term investments - 36 24 - - 3 63
Remmsurance assets 97 236 404 149 36 48 970
Insurance and reinsurance debtors (1) 49 10 1,094 85 102 824 2,164
Dernvative assets - 5 39 - - - 44
Cash at bank and mn hand 1 176 41 - 3 1 222
As at 31 December 2011
Credit rating relating to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired Total of
financial
assets that
are neither
past due nor
AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not rated impaired
£m £m £m £m £fm £m £m
Debt secunties 1,357 471 962 102 35 13 2940
Other financia! assets - - { 1 - 4 6
Short term 1investments - 7 25 - - 2 34
Remnsurance assets 72 184 533 145 53 22 1 009
Insurance and reinsurance debtors (1) 41 6 13 11 - 1.506 1,597
Dernvative assets - - 62 - - - 62
Cash at bank and 1n hand 43 107 16 3 - 4 173

Notes

1 The mnsurance and reinsurance debtors classified as not rated compnse personal poheyholders and small corporate customers that do not have individual credit
raungs The overall risk 1o the Company 15 deemed to be low as the cover could be cancelled if payments were not recerved on tme

With the exception of AAA rated Government securities, the largest aggregate credit exposure does not exceed 3% of the
Company’s total financial assets

The Company 15 exposed to credit and concentrations of risk with individual reinsurers, due to the nature of the reinsurance market
and the restricted range of reinsurers that have acceptable credit ratings The reinsurance strategy 1s to purchase reinsurance in the
most effective manner trom reinsurers who meet its security standards Reinsurance counterparhies are subject to a rigorous internal
assessment process on an ongoing basis to ensure that their creditworthiness continues to be satisfactory and the potential impact
from reinsurer default 1s measured regularly and managed accordingly The Group Rensurance Credit Committee oversees the
management of these risks Group standards are set such that reinsurers that have a financial strength rating of less than ‘A-" with
Standard & Poor’s, or a compardble rating, are removed from the Group’s autherised hist of approved remsurers unless the Group’s
internal review discovers exceptional circumstances 1 favour of the rewnsurer Collateral 15 taken to mitigate exposures, where
appropnate, to acceptable levels or the size or credit quality of the exposure
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The Group regularly momtors us aggregate Exposures by reinsurer group against predetermined remnsurer group limits, n
accordance with the methodology agreed by the BRC The Company’s largest reinsurance exposures to active Tetnsurance groups
arc HDI-Gerling, Munich Re and Swiss Re At 31 December 2012 the remnsurance asset recoverable from these groups does not
exceed 5% of the Company’s total financial assets Stress tests are performed by reinsurer counterparty and the limits are set such
that 1n a catastrophic event, the exposure to a single reinsurer 1s estimated not to exceed 3% of the Company’s total financial assets
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are members of government mandated pools 1n various parts of the world As of 31
December 2012, the largest pool (by premium volume) 1s Pool Re operated by the UK Government 1o provide terrorism cover

There are no matenal financial assets that would have been past due or impaired had the terms not been renegotiated

The following table provides information regarding the carrying value of financial assets that have been impaired and the ageing of
financial assets that are past duc but not impaired as at 31 December 2012

Neither past Financial assets that are past due but not Financial Carrying Impairment
due nor impaired assets  valuen losses
impaired 0-3 3-6 6-12  Greater that have the charged to
than 12 been balance the P&L

months months months months impaired sheet
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities 3,375 - - - - - 3,375 -
Other financial assets 15 - - - . - 15 -
Short term investments 63 - - - . - 63 -
Remsurance assets 970 - - - - 4 974 -
Insurance and reinsurance debtors 2,164 19 12 2 7 1 2,205 (5
Derivative assets 44 - - - - - 44 -
Cash at bank and in hand 222 - - - - - 222 -

As at 31 December 2011
Nenther past Financial assets that are past due but not impaired  Financial  Carrying  Impairment

due 0-3 3-6 6-12  Greater assels valuc in losses
nor impaired than 12 that have the charged to
months months months  months been balance the P&L

impaired sheet
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Debt securities 2940 - - - - - 2,940 -
Other financial assets 6 - - - - - 6 -
Short term investments 34 - - - - - 34 -
Remnsurance assets 1009 - - - 9 1.018 (1
Insurance and remsurance debtors 1 597 12 6 3 3 3 1,624 3)
Denvative assets 62 - - - - - 62 -
Cash at bank and in hand 173 - - - - 173 -

Local operanons are responsible for assessing and momitonng the creditworthiness of their counterparues (e g brokers and
pohicyholders) Local credit committees are responsible for ensuring these exposures are within the nisk appetite of the local
operations Exposure monitoring and reporting 1s embedded throughout the organisation with aggregate credit posihons reported
and monitored at Group level

The Company’s investments comprise a broad range of financial investments 1ssued principally in the UK

A1 31 December 2012, the Company had pledged £901m (20/7 £901m) of financial assets as collateral for abiliies or conuingent
habilities and had accepted £453m (2011 £479m) collateral that could be sold or pledged The nature of the assels pledged as
collateral comprises government securities of £855m (2011 £855m), cash and cash equuvalents of £13m (2071 £12m) and debt
secunities £33m (20771 £34m) The terms and condwions of the collateral pledged are market standard 1n relation to letter of credn
facilines
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The Company 1s permiited to sell or repledge collateral held in the event of default by the owner, the fair value of which has been
noted above at £453m The terms and conditions of the collateral held are market standard The assets held as collateral are readily
converuible 1nto cash

At 31 December 2012, the Company had entered into short term sale and repurchase agreements for UK government securities The
Company continues to recogmse the debt secunues on the balance sheet as the Group remains exposed to the nsks and rewards of
ownership The carrying value of these debt securities recognised on the balance sheet 1s £295m (2011 £297m) and the carrying
value of the associated habihihes 1s £295m (2071 £297m)

Certain of the Company’s equuties and debt securities that are held at fair value are unhisted (2012 £639m, 2017 £744m) Thesc
primarilly compnse cash instruments which are highly liquid and redeemable at short notice at carrying value The amount also
includes a number of other unhsted mvestments which are valued euther by reference to industry pricing sources or model based
calculations

Market risk

The Group 15 exposed to the risk of potential losses from adverse movements 1n marketl prices including those of interest rates,
cquities, property, exchange rates and derivatives The Group’s exposure to these nisks 1s governed by market nisk policy
Exposures are controlled by the settng of investment Iimits and managing asset-liability matching in hne with the Group’s nisk
appetite

The Group Investment Commuttee (GIC), on behalf of the Group Board, 1s responsible for reviewing and approving the mvestment
strategy for the Group’s mnvestment portfolios It provides approval for all major changes of the Group’s investment strategy and, in
particular, approves any substantive changes to the balance of the Group’s funds between the major asset classes Importantly the
GIC also approves the terms of reference of the Group’s main operational investment commuttee, the Group Asset Management
Committee (GAMC) The BRC 1ssues GAMC with investment risk limits

Interest rate risk

The fair value of the Company s portfolio of fixed income securities 1s inversely correlated to changes 1n the market interest rates
Thus 1f interest rates fall, the fair value of the portfolic would tend to rise and vice versa as set out 1n the sensitivily analysis on page
30

Equty price risk

The Company’s portfolio of equity securities 15 subject to equity risk arising from changes in market price Thus 1f the value of
equities rise so will the fair value of 1ts portfolio and vice versa as set out 1n the sensitivity analysis on page 30

The Group sets appropnate nisk limits o ensure that no significant concentrations to individual compantes arise The Group takes a
long term view 1n selecting shares and looks to build value over a sustained period of time rather than churning the portfolio looking

tar short term gains from 1ts equity holdings

The Company makes use of derivative products as appropriate to manage equity exposure and 10 protect the portfoho from losses
outside of its risk appeute

Property price risk ,

The Company’s portfolio of properties 1s subject to property price nisk arising from changes in the market value of properties Thus
if the value of property lalls so will the fair value of the portfolio as set out 1n the sensitivity analysis on page 30

A number of the Company’s property holdings are Group occupied The Company s investment wn investment property 1s recorded
as such and these invesiments are held as part of an efficient portfoho management strategy
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Currency risk
The Company incurs exposure to foreign currency exchange risk in two ways

e Operanonal currency risk — by underwriting habilities 1n currencies other than the currency of the primary environment in
which the business units operate (non functional currencies)

e Structural currency risk — by investing 1n overseas subsidiaries and operating an mternational 1nsurance group

Operanonal currency nisk 1s managed within the Company's individual operations by broadly matching assets and habihines by
currency

Structural currency nsk 1s managed at a Group level through currency forward and foreign exchange option contracts within the
limits that have been set  In managing structural currency risk, the needs of the Group’s subsidianies to maintain net assets 1n local
currencies to sausfy local regulatory solvency and internal nsk based capital requirements are taken into account These assets
should prove adequate to support local insurance activities irrespective of exchange rate movements

Derivatives

The Company may use derivauve financial instruments for the purpose of reducing its exposure to adverse fluctuations in interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices and long term nflauon The Company does not use denvatives to leverage its exposure
to markets and does not hold or 1ssue financial instruments for speculative purposes Forward contracts and foreign exchange
options are used to reduce the nsk of adverse currency movements on certain forecast future cash transactions and for structural
hedging The policy on use of derivatives 1s approved by the BRC

Remaining hfe Fair value Notional principal
amounts
Less than One to More than
one year five years five years 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

Cross currency
Asset 14 - - 14 18 1,323 1,465
Liablity 13 - - 13 15 1.411 1,366
Inflation
Asset - - 21 21 10 See below  Sce below
Liablity - - 24 24 13 See below  See below
Equity/index
Asset 9 - - 9 34 See below See below
Liability 12 - - 12 27 See below  See below

At 31 December 2012 there were derivauve contracts in place to protect the value of the UK, Canadian and European equity
portfohos of the Group These provided limited protection against declines 1n market levels whilst also capping participation n any
appreciation of the market In total, this strategy covers an underlying equity value up to approximately £348m (2071]
approximately £477m) If UK, Canadian, European and US equity markets decreased by 15%, the impact of these derivatives as at
31 December 2012, would be to decrease the impact of the decline by £26m (2017 £30m)

During 2011 the Company entered into a series of swap contracts which collectively provide hmited cover against a sharp increase
in long term 1nflation In total the swap contracts provide inflation cover over a nominal value of £180m (20/] £180m) and are
spht over different contract terms

At 31 December 2012 the Company holds currency forward contracts and foreign exchange options that are designated as hedging
instruments to reduce structural foreign exchange nsk  The external currency forward contracis have been murrored by internal
currency forward contracts in order to pass the benefit of the contracts to a subsidiary parent company of most of the overseas
subsidianes
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Sensitivity analysis
The Group uses a number of sensitivity or stress test-based nisk management tools 1o undersiand the impact of the above risks on
earnings and capital in both normal and stressed conditions  These stress tests combine determmstic shocks, analysis of hstornical

scenarios and stochastic modelling using the 1nternal capital model to inform the Group's decision making and planning process and
also for identification and management of risks within the business units

The following table provides an indicauion for the Company of some of the single factor changes adopted within the Group

Impact on fair value of investments (note 1 and note 4)

Increase/(decrease)
2012 2011
£m £m
Interest rate markets (note 2)
Impact on fixed interest secunities of increase 1n interest rates of
100bps (152) (100}
Decrease of equity markets (note 3)
Direct impact on equities of a 15% fall in equity
markets (38) (103)
Mutigating impact ansing from derivatives
held 28 30
Property markets (note 3)
Decrease of property markets of 15% (46) (51}
Notes

1 This analysis assumes that there 15 no correlation between equity price interest rate and property market rate risks It also assumes that all other assets and hiabilines
rematn unchanged and that no management action 1s taken This analysis does not represent management s view of future market change but reflects management's
view of key sensitivities

2 The sensitivity of the fixed interest secunities of the Company has been modelled by reference to a reasonable approximation of the average interest rate sensitivity
of the investments held within each of the portfolios

3 The effect of movements in equity and property markets 1s reflected as a one time decrease of worldwide equity and property markets on 1 January 2013 and 1
January 2012 which results in a 15% decline 1n the value of the Group’s assets in these investment categones

4 This analysis has not considered the impact of the above market changes on the valuation of the Company’s insurance contract habilities or retirement benefit
obligations

5 This analysis 1s presented gross of the corresponding tax credits/(charges)

Liqudity risk

Liquidity risk 1s the risk that cash may not be available to pay obligations when due at a reasonable cost The Company has no
appeute for liquidity nsk and 1s committed to meeting all habihties as they fall due The investment risk limits set by the BRC
ensure that a large part of the Company’s portfoho 1s kept in highly iquid marketable securines sufficient to meet its liabilities as
they fall due based on actuarial assessment and allowing for contingencies The limits are monitored at a Group level as part of the

Group Risk exposure momtoring and BRC reporting process

In addition the Company has commutted credit facilities available as set out 1n note 21
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Matunrity periods or contractual repricing

The following table summarises the contractual repricing or maturity dates (whichever 1s earlier) tor financial habihiues that are
subject to fixed and variable interest rates Insurance contract habilities are also presented and are analysed by remaining duration

Balance

Lessthan Oneto Twoto Threeto Fourto Fiveto sheet
one year two years three four five years ten years  Total carrying
years years value

£m £m fm £m £m £m £m £m

2012

Financial liabilities
Subordinated liablities - - - - - 492 492 492
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 6,896 - - - - - 6,89 6.896

Amounts owed to credit institutions 348 - - - - - 348 348
Denivative trading Liabilities 49 - - - - - 49 49
Direct insurance credators 119 4 - - - - 123 123
Remnsurance creditors 139 9 2 4 - - 154 154
Total 7,551 13 2 4 - 492 8,062 8,062
Interest on subordinated habilities 46 46 46 46 46 92 322 -
Balance
Less than Oneto Twoto Threeto Fourto Fiveto sheet
one year two years three four years five years ten years Total carrying
years value
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
2011

Financial habihnes
Subordinated habilities - - - - - 492 492 492
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 6,846 - - - - - 6,846 6,846
Amounts owed to credit institutions 388 - - - - - 388 388
Denvauve trading habilities 55 - - - - - 55 35
Direct snsurance creditors 122 - - - - - 122 122
Reinsurance creditors 150 4 2 - - - 156 156
Total 7,561 4 2 - - 492 8,059 8,059
Interest on subordinated lhiabilities 46 46 46 46 46 138 368 -

Capital management

Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc 1s the major UK insurer within the group of companies (the ‘Group’) controlled by RSA
Insurance Group plc and 1s regulated by the Financial Services Authonity (‘FSA™)

The maintenance of a strong capital posiuen of both the Group and the Company (which owns all the regulated companies withun
the Group and transacts the majority of the UK business) 1s cninical for the Company’s ability to conduct business

The Group and the Company maintain sufficient capital, which comprises shareholders” equity and subordinated loan caputal, to
meet their plans and objecuves This represents sufficient surpluses for both regulatory and economic caputal, as well as sufficient
capital to support the Group’s and the Company’s aim of maintaining single ‘A’ ratings

To provide protection against material events or shocks, the Company would normally expect to hold sufficient capital to maintain
signtficant economic and regulatory surpluses  The maintenance of a caputal posiion n excess of regulatory requirements 15 an
absolute requirement for all of the Group’s regulated entities There 1s no tolerance for breaching capital requirements for any
regulated entuty
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3. Risk Management (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group’s regulated entiies are required to hold appropniate levels of capital in order to satusty applicable local regulations  In
certain instances this could restrict the subsidiaries’ ability to transfer funds to the UK parent where retained earmings form part of
the local required regulatory capital Additionally, regulation 1n certain countries 1n which the Group’s subsidiaries operate may
also impose other imitations such as foreign exchange control restrictions

Economic capital

Economuic capital 1s the Group’s preferred measure of capital sufficiency It s the Group’s own assessment of the amount of capital
1t needs to hold o meet 115 obligatons given the Group’s risk appetite  Assets and habilities are valued on an economic basis
providing the most realistic representation of the Group’s financial position

The economic capital analysis compares the economic value of the Group's assets with the total resources required 1n a range of
adverse scenarios, calibrated to a defined nisk tolerance consistent with the Group’s ‘A’ rating which 1s tn line with target The
economic capital surplus 1s the amount by which the economic assets exceed the total rescurces required The total resources
required 1s the amount of assets the Group needs today to meet its habilities under the defined nisk tolerance The Group defines the
economic capital required as the difference between the total resource requirement and the accountuing value of habilities At 31
December 2012, the Group’s surplus economic capital 1s approximately £0.7bn (2071 £08bn) Addwonally, the Company
provides an economic capital assessment for the Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance ple group of UK insurance companies

The reduction 1n the year 15 mainly the result of falling yield curves in the territories 1in which the Group operates and the impact of
increased acquisitions during the year

The economic capital model 1s used to support, inform and 1mprove the Group’s decision making across the Group It 1s used to
determine the Group’s opumum capital structure, 1ts invesiment strategy 11s reinsurance programme and to determine the pricing
and target returns for each porifoho The economic capital model 1s also used for the Group's and Company’s internal capital
assessment (‘'ICA’) The only adjustment made 1s to use the FSA’s required calibration

Regulatory solvency position
The Group and Company remain fully compliant with both the FSA’s risk based ICA methodology and Solvency |

As at 31 December 2012 the Group and Company have a Solvency | surplus of approximately £1.2bn (2077 £] 3bn) and £1.2bn
(2011 £1 3bn} respectively The coverage ratio for the Company stood at approximately 1 7 times at 31 December 2012 (20771 1 8
mes)

The Group and Company received their latest Individual Capital Guidance (based on their ICA submussion) from the FSA n late
2011 and at the request of the FSA remains confidenual The ICA 1s a forward looking, economic assessment of the capital
requirements of the Group and Company based on the assessment of the risks to which 1t 15 exposed The models used to determine
the ICA have been integrated into the Group’s business processes and are used to enhance the management ot the Group

4. Reorgamisation costs and other items

The Technical account includes

2012 2011

£m £m

Reorgamisation costs 13 _
Operating lease rentals — equmpment 1 1

Reorgamsation costs comprised employee redundancy costs, vacant lease accruals and other restructuring expenses
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5. Exchange rates

Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc
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2012 2012 2011 2011
The rates of exchange used 1n these accounts in respect of the major Cumulative End of Cumulauve End of
Overseas Currencies are Average Period Average Penod
Euro 1.23 1.23 115 120
US Dollar 1.59 1.63 160 155
Hong Kong Dollar 12.30 12.60 1249 1207
Singapore Dollar 1.98 1.99 201 201
6. Segmental information
(a) by class of business
Accident  Motor Fire & Marine Third Party Assistance Other Re- Total
& Health PropertyAviation & Liability insurance
Transport
2012 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross preminms written 44 1,622 1,565 371 467 27 285 512 4,293
Gross premiums earned 44 984 1,516 364 480 28 268 384 4,068
Gross claims incurred 13} (882) (672) (283) (318) 9) (160) (246) (2,583)
Gross operating (15) (197 (633) (135) (191) (11) (78) (133) (1,393)
expenses
Gross techmcal result 16 (95) 211 54) (29) 8 30 5 92
Reinsurance balance «@) (10} (205) 30 (43} - 1 (28) (259)
Net technmcal result 12 (105) 6 29 (72) 8 31 23) (167)
Accrdent Motor Fire & Manne Third Party Assistance Other Re- Total
& Health Property Aviation & Liabihty nsurance
Transport
2011 £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Gross premiums written 38 989 1,504 342 435 27 119 122 3,576
Gross premiums earned 37 944 1,470 338 453 28 79 115 3,464
Gross claims incurred (17} (023) (736) (204) (266) )] (112) (30) (2,297
Gross operating expenses (15) (165) (581) (115) (181) (11) (26) (29) (1,123)
Gross technical result 5 (144) 153 19 6 8 (59) 56 44
Remsurance balance (3) 11 (159) 1 (31 - 62 47) (166)
Net techmcal result 2 {133) (6) 20 (25) 8 3 9 (122)
All of the business above relates 10 general insurance which 1s considered to be the only business segment
(b) by geographical segment
2012 2011
£m £m
Gross prermiums written for direct business by origin
UK 3,291 3,256
Other EEA 320 44
Other 170 154
3,781 3,454

Gross premiums are disclosed by ongin - There 1s no material difference between the amounts shown and those by reference to
destunation (1e location of risk)

Total commssions for direct insurance busimess accounted for by the Company durning the year amounted to £729m

(2011 £578m)
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6. Segmental information (continued)
On 1 January 2012, the RSA Group raucnahised 1ts UK 1nsurance operation by the legal transfer of insurance habilities and the
assets backing the insurance habilities of a number of 1its UK subsidianies and a former subsidiary to another authonsed UK msurer
within the Group The transferee compames with no remaimng insurance labihities were subsequently de-authorised as UK

INSUTErs

For the Company, the impact on the technical provisions was the assumption of gross technical provisions of £278m (£161m net of
remnsurance) at | January 2012

In addition, the Company transferred technical provisions relaung 1o its marine business to a subsidiary The mmpact on the
technical provisions was the transfer of gross technical provisions of £185m (£70m net of reinsurance) at 1 January 2012

The Company also entered into contracts to reinsure the insurance habilines at 1 January 2012 of two 1f its remaining UK subsidiary
msurance companies From 1 January 2012, the Company reinsured 100% of the new business written by these two companies

under a quota share arrangement

The overall impact of the insurance bustness transfer and the reinsurance contracts was Lo INcrease gross premums written in 2012
by £618m

7. Auditor’s remuneration

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts was £40,000 (2071 £40,000) Details of non-audit
fees payable to Deloitte LLP are disclosed in the RSA Insurance Group plc 2012 Annual Report & Accounts

8. Directors’ emoluments

2012 2011
£000 £000
The aggregate emoluments of the directors’, including amounis recetved from subsidianies, were as follows
Salaries and bonuses 3,896 5,692
Allowances, benefits and other awards 662 1,325
4,558 7,017

The cniteria for making bonus awards 1s based on targeted levels of business sector profit and specific business objectives Details
of director’s interests 1n RSA Insurance Group plc, including share options granted to directors under the executive and Sharesave

employee share opuion schemes, are wncluded n the directors’ report of RSA Insurance Group plc As at 31 December 2012, there

was an interest free loan of £5,000 outstanding to A P Brown under the standard terms of the Group’s UK Car Ownership Scheme,
which 1s open to all UK managers within a qualifying salary band

2012 2011
£000 £000
The emoluments of the highest paid director (S P G Lee / A K Haste) were
Salary, bonus, allowances, benefits and other awards 1,516 2,770

At 31 December 2012 the highest paid director had accrued annual pension of £nil (2017 £16,7123) This figure 1s based on the
amount of annual pension which would be payable on s attaining normal pension age 1f he had left the Company’s service on 31
December 2012

Reurement benefits acerued under defined benefit schemes for [ A Craston who served during the year Contributions of £108,856
{2011 £185,815) were made to Group defined contrtbution schemes during the year in respect of the other directors
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9. Employees and staff costs

2012 2011
fm £m

Wages and salaries 347 348
Social security costs 38 18
Other pension costs 16 16
401 402

Other pension costs include only those items included within operating costs Items reported elsewhere have been excluded

The average monthly number of persons (including executive directors) employed by

the Company durning the year was 2012 2011
UK 8,317 8,530
Other EEA 244 5
Other 280 255
8,841 8,790

10. Retirement benefits

The Company operates defined contribution pension schemes and funded and unfunded defined benefit pension schemes The assets
of the funded schemes are held mainly 1n separate trustee admunistered funds

In April 2002, the defined benefit schemes were effectuvely closed to new entrants following the introduction of a new, primarily
defined contribution, scheme (the 2002 scheme) However, due to a small defined benefit underpin the 2002 Scheme 1s sull
disclosed as a defined benefit scheme )

In 2005, following discussions with the Trustees and consultation with the members, the defined benefit schemes were altered from
providing benefits on a final salary basis to benefits on a revalued average salary basis with effect from 1 January 2006 Under the
new benefit formula, the accrued benefits of current acuve members are based on salanics at the date of change and will increase 1n
line with inflation each year (lmited to 5% n any year) up to their retirement date Benefits carned 1n each year lrom 1 January
2006 are based on salaries 1n that year and are revalued up to retirement

In addition to these changes, the 2002 scheme (which was the scheme to which new UK employees had been admutied following the
closure of the defined benefit schemes to new members) has been closed 1o further accrual from 1 January 2006 It has been
replaced by a stakeholder arrangement and members of the 2002 Scheme and future new employees i the UK accrue future benefits
on a defined contribution basis under the stakeholder scheme In 2012 contribuuons of £18m {207) £]7m) were made to defined
contribution schemes 1n the United Kingdom

During 2009 the Company entered into arrangementis that insured 55% of the retirement obligations relating 1o pensions in payment
i the two main UK schemes The arrangements comprise assets and interest rate swaps combined with an imsurance contract that
provide for the full payment of the pensions 1n return for the actual investment return on a segregated portfolio of assets held by the
pension funds at the inception of the arrangement The pension schemes continue o benefit from the assets held in the portfolio and
retain the obligation to meet the msured pension obhigauons The assets and pension obhgations are therelore not derecogmised n
the financial statements and an asset (representing the recovery of the insured pension obhigations) and a hablity (to pay the
mvestment return on the pertfolio of assets to the insurer) are recognised

During 2010 changes were made to the benefit structure of the three main UK schemes Changes affected future accrual from |
March 2010 onwards Accrual rates were reduced, the reurement age was ncreased, revaluanon was subject 1o a cap of 2 5%, a
cap was applied to the salary used for the defined benefit schemes and the schemes contracted back into the State scheme
Employees were enutled to join the siakeholder scheme for earnings above the cap
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10 Retirement benefits (continued)

For the two main UK defined benefit schemes, the level of contributions 1n 2012 were £94m {2011 £73m) of which £70m (2011}
£51m) were additional contributions 1n line with the plan to reduce their funding deficits Expected contributions to the two
schemes for the year ending 31 December 2013 are approximately £44m, including £30m of additional contributions to reduce the
deficit  Further addihional contributions may become due once the results of the March 2012 funding valuations are known (results
expected 1n 2013)

The components of the defined benefit pension cost that are included within profit before tax 1n the financial statements are as
follows

2012 2011
£m £m

Current service cosl 19 17
Past service cost 1 i
Total charge included 1n profit before tax 20 18
Expected return on assets . (288) (289)
Interest cost on pension scheme habilities 266 272
Total financtng credit included in profit before tax (22) (17

The schemes are effectively closed to new entrants The current service cost, under the projected unit method, measured as a
percentage of active members’ salanies, 1s likely 1o rise as the members® age profile increases

Amounts recognised within the Siatement of total recognised gains and losses

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Actual return on assets 1n excessf(deficit) of expected return on assets 226 386 244 (413) (352)
Experience (losses)/gains on hiabihties (28) (70) 43) 116 99)
Change 1n actuanal assumptions underlying the present value of scheme (358) (364) (82) (644) 741
habilities
Actuanal (loss)/gain (160) 48) 119 (941) 290
Deferred 1axation 35 10 (35) 263 (84)
RecoEmsed in the Statement of total recoEnised Eains and losses (125) 38) 84 (678) 206
Maovement 1n deficit during the year 2012 2011
£m £m
Deficit at 1 January 89) (119)
Total operating charge 2m (18)
Employer contribution 98 79
Total financing credu 22 17
Actuanal (loss)/gain (160) (48)
Deficit at 31 December (149) (89)

The value of the defined benefit liability that 1s included at 31 December 1n the financial statements 1s as follows

2012 2011 2010

£m £m £m
Equities 1471 1,336 1,351
Bonds 4,708 3,848 3,680
Other 85 570 274
Present value of funded obligations fully covered by insurance arrangement 1,544 1,510 1,431
Value of obligations under insurance arrangement (1,969 (1,809) (1,809)
Fair value of assets held by pension schemes 5,836 5455 4,927
Present value of pension hiabilities (5,985) (5,544) (5,046)
Net deficit (149) (89) (119)
Related deferred 1ax asset 35 23 a2
Pension fund asset 29 21 7
Pension fund Lhability (143) (87 (94)
Net pension hability (114) (66) (87)
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Included 1n the profit and loss account reserve 1s a pension and post reurement reserve on a FRS 17 basis at 31 December 2012 of

£831)m (2011 £(706)m)

The following 1s a reconcihation of the Company’s retirement benefit obligations

2012 2011
£m £m
Retirement benefit obligations at 1 January 5,544 5,046
Current service costs 19 17
Past service costs 1 1
Interest costs 266 272
Actuarnal loss on obligations 386 434
Benefits pard (231) (226)
Retirement benefit obligations at 31 December 5,985 5,544
The following is a reconciliation of the Company’s pension schemes assets
2012 2011
£m £m
Pension schemes’ assets at 1 January 5,455 4,927
Return on schemes’ assets 514 675
Contributions by the employer 98 79
Benefits paid (231) (226)
Pension schemes’ assets at 31 December 5,836 5,455
Additional information for the current annual period and previous four annual periods
2912 2011 2010 2009 2008
£m £m £m £m £m
Al 31 December
Present value of defined benefit obligations 5,985 5,544 5,046 4,835 4,276
Fair value of plan assets 5,836 5,455 4,927 4,523 4,831
(Deficit)/surplus (149) (89) (119) (312) 555
Experience adjustments on plan habilities (28} (70) (43) 116 99)
Expenience adjustments on plan assets 226 386 244 “@13) (352)
The principal actuanal assumptions used were as follows
2012 2011
% %
Assumptions used 1n calculation of retirement benefit obligation
Interest rate used to discount habilities 43 49
Annual rate of general inflation 25 28
Annual rate of increase 1n salaries ,‘ 26 36
Annual rate of increase 1n pensions 25 27
Assumptions used 1n calculation of profit & loss account credit/charge 1n year
Discount rate 49 55
Expected return on
Equities 80 80
Bonds 43 53
Other 49 54

Mortality rate

The mortality assumptions are set following investigations of the main schemes’ recent expenence by the schemes’ actuaries for the
funding valuauions At the funding valuation 1n March 2009, the mortality assumptions adopted for the main UK schemes used the
SAPS Light Normal base 1able with percentage adjustments to reflect the schemes’ recent experience compared with that expected

under these tables The next funding valuation has an effective date of March 2012, with results expected 1n 2013
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Mortality rate (continued)

Reductions tn future mortality rates are allowed for using 80% (males) and 60% (females) of the long cohort improvements The
weighted average assumptions imply that a current pensioner aged 60 has an expected future hifeume of 27.6 (2011 27 5) years
(males) and 28.2 (2011 28 1) years (females) and a future pensioner aged 60 1n 15 years time has a future expected hifeume from
age 60 of 28 3(20/1 28 3) years (males) and 28.7 (2011 28 7) years (females)

Commutation

Each of the UK defined benefit pension schemes has changed ns rules to allow for increased commuiation following *A day’ in
Apnil 2006 In 2011 and 2012, the Group followed the funding valuation assumptions, and an allowance was madce for future
commutation using the current commutation factors

Sensitivity analysis

The discount rate, the assumed 1nflation rate and the mortahty assumptions all have a significant effect on the FRS 17 accounting
valuation A 0 1% increase 1n the discount rate would reduce the defined benefit obligations 1n the UK not covered by the insurance
arrangement by £63m (2011 £55m) A 0 1% increase 1n the inflabion rate assumption would increase the defined benefit obligations
in the UK not covered by the mnsurance arrangement by £46m (2071 £51m) An increase of one year in Iife expectancy would
increase the defined benefit obhigations 1in the UK not covered by the insurance arrangement by approximately £97m (2071 £84m)

11 Share based payment

The RSA Insurance Group (the Group) has four types of share based payment plans in which employees of the Company participate
and which are settled in the form of ordinary shares the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) the Sharesave Plan (SAYE), the
Sharebuild Plan and the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) Ditutton levels for all schemes are held strictly within
Association of British Insurers limits  Further information on the LTIP scheme 1s included below and information on the other share
schemes can be found in the remuneration report 1n the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group

The 10tal employment cost recorded 1n the profit and loss account for all plans 1s £4m in 2012 (2011 £6m)

Analysis of share scheme costs (per profit and loss account)

2012 2011
£m £m
LTIP - 3
SAYE 2 2
Sharebuild 2 1
Total 4 6

The value of the awards granted during 2012 1s £8m (2071 £/9m) of which £2m (2071 £4m) 1s charged 10 the profit and loss
account The balance of the value of the awards will be charged to the profit and loss account dunng the remaiming vesting periods

Analysis of new awards costs

2012 2011
Charge for year  Total value Charge for year Total value
£m £m £m £m
LTIP 2 6 4 16
SAYE . . - 1
Sharebuild - 2 2
Total 2 8 4 19

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) for Executive Directors and other selected exccutives was adopted following approval
obtamed at the Group’s 2006 AGM  Awards have been made each year since 2006 following shareholder approval
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11. Share based payment (continued)

Long Term Incentive Plan (continued)

The structure of the plan atlows for a number of different types of awards to be made Voluntary Deferred Shares are purchased by
participants from net bonus payable (limited to a maximum value of 33% of net bonus), n addition, for semior executives, the
Remuneration Commuttee may defer a portion of an individual’s gross bonus (Iimited to 33% of that bonus) 1nto an award over
shares referred 10 for the purpose of the plan as Compulsory Deferred Shares Voluntary Deferred Shares are held 1n trust for three
years Compulsory Deferred Shares awards are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Group No further performance
condittons apply The Remuneration Commuittee may make a conditional award of shares on a ‘matched’ basis to Voluntary and
Compulsory Deferred Shares (‘Matching Shares™) up to a maximum of 2 1 and these are normally forfeited on an employee leaving
the Group

Addinonally, the Remuneration Commitiee may make conditional awards of Performance Shares to semor execunves and
conditional awards of Restricted Shares to other executives and semor managers

Awards of Performance Shares and Matching Shares related to Compulsory Deferred Shares are subject to a performance condition
consisting of a combnation of a return on equity target and a total sharcholder return target {(with performance measured by
comparison against other European 1nsurance companies) over a single three year performance period Matching Shares related 1o
Voluntary Deferred Shares are subject only to the return on equity performance condiion Restnicted Shares are not subject to
performance conditions  All awards vest on the third anmiversary of the date of grant to the extent that the performance conditions
have been met Performance Shares and Restricted Shares are normally forfeited on an employee leaving the Group

Further information on the LTIP can be found 1n the remuneration report n the Annual Report and Accounts of the Group Further
disclosures 1n respect of the SAYE and Sharebuild schemes have not been made on the grounds that the schemes are immalenal to

the Group

12. Investment income, expenses and charges

Investment mcome  Net realised Net unrealised Total investment
gains/(losses) gains/(losses) return
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
£m £m £fm £m £m £m £m £m
Investment income
Investment property 23 15 - 3 (25) (4) 2) 14
Equity secunities 31 37 37 98 (3) (136) 65 n
Debt securities 121 101 4 - 82 56 207 157
Other investments
Loans to subsidianes 3 - - - - 3 5
QOther 2 11 - - - - 2 11
Deposits, cash at bank and in hand 3 : - - - - 3 3
Dernivatives 1 - 6 24 (8) 13 1) 37
184 172 47 125 46 n 277 226
Dhvidends from subsidiary undertakings 606 629 - - - - 606 629
790 801 47 125 46 an 883 855
Revaluation of subsidiary undertakings - ‘ - - - (187) (165) (187) (165)

Investment expenses, charges and interest

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 3 4)
Interest on other loans (110) (111)
Investment management expenses ) 9)
Unwind of discount (2) (an

(122) {135)
Net investment return 574 555




13. Taxation

The credit for taxation 1n the profit and loss account comprnises
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2012 2011
£m £m

Current tax
UK Corporation tax (6) i1
Overseas taxation 7 -
Adjustments 1n respect of prior periods (11) 30
Total current tax 10) 41
Deferred tax
Timing differences — origination and reversal (14) 39)
Adjustments 1o respect of prior pertods 3 37)
Adjustment for change in tax rates 14 10
Total deferred tax 3 {60)
Tax credit (7 (25)

UK corporation tax for the current year 1s based on arate of 24.5% (2011 26 5%)

Factors affecting the current tax (credit)/charge

The current tax (credit)/charge for the year 1s less than 24.5% (2011 less than 26 5%) due to the 1items set out 1n the reconcihation

below
2012 2011
£m £m
Profit on ordinary activities hefore tax 406 425
Tax at 24 5% (2011 at 26 5%) 99 113
Factors affecting (credut)/charge
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 44 44
Tax exempt income and investment gains/losses (155) {175)
Fiscal adjustments (1% 2h
Adjustment to tax charge in respect of previous periods (11) 30
Group relief surrendered without payment 9 10
Unrelieved foreign tax credits 8 -
Other tming differences 15 40
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (10) 41
Other debtors includes £34m (2077 £15m) 1n respect of corporation tax receivable
14. Dividends
2012 2011
£m £m
Paid Nl (2071 17 09p)1ntenim dividend per ordinary share - 500
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Goodwill Renewal Total
on rights
acquisition
2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 21 15 36
Additions 7 3 10
At 31 December 28 18 46
Amortisation
At 1 January 10) &) (19)
Charge for the year - 1) a)
At 31 December (10) (10) (20)
Net hook value
At 31 December 2012 18 8 26
At 31 December 2011 11 6 17
16 Investments
2012 2011
£m £m
Land and buildings
Freehold 278 301
Long leasehold 37 39
Short leasehold 2 2
Total land and buildings 317 342
Of which Group occupied 11 12
Movement 1n the carrying value of land and buildings 1s detailed below
Land and buildings at | January 342 355
Sales - (9}
Purchases - . -
Fair value losses (25) (G
Land and buildings at 31 December 317 342
The historical cost of property at 31 December 1s £363m (2071 £363m)
2012 2011
£m £m
Other financial investments
Shares and other variable yield securiies and umits tn unit trusts 402 689
Debt secunities and other fixed income securities
British government securities 1,183 1,169
Other government securities 168 176
Corporate bonds 2,024 1,595
At fair value through profit or loss (designated as such wpon mitial 3,777 3,629
recognition)
Loans and deposits with credit institutions
Other loans 13 4
Deposits with credit institutions 63 35
Loans and recervables 76 39
Total other financial investments 3,853 3,668
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16. Investments (continued)

2012 2011
£m £m
Listed investments
Included 1n total investments are the following
Shares and other vaniable yield securities and units 1n unat trusts 311 522
Debt securities and other fixed income securities 2,828 2,363
3,139 2,885

Included within shares and other varniable yield securities and units 1n unit trusts above are ordinary shares in RSA Insurance Group
plc, the Company’s ulumate parent, held by the Royal & Sun Alhance ESOP Trust and Royal & Sun Alhance ESOP Trust No 2,
which have a carrying value of £1m (2011 £2m)

The historical cost of total investments 1s £4,006m (2011 £3,838m)

The property valuations have been prepared on the basis of open market value at the balance sheet date 1n accordance with The Royal
Insutute of Chartered Surveyors’ Apprasal and Valuation Manual by Messrs Jones Lang LaSalle, external qualified valuation
surveyors

Fair value measurements recognised 1n the balance sheet

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to imual recognition at fawr value
grouped into Levels | to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value i1s observable

Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
2012 2012 2012 2012
£m £m £m im

Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss account
Equity securiies 364 - 38 402
Debt securities 3,280 93 2 3,375
Denvative assets 44 - - 44
Derivative habilines (50) - - (50)
Total 3,638 93 40 3,771

Faur value hicrarchy

Level 1  Level2 Level 3 Total
2011 2011 2011 2011
£m £m £m £m

Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss account
Equity securities 664 - 25 689
Debt securities 2,849 88 3 2,940
Dernvative assels 62 - - 62
Denivative habilities (53) (2) - (55)
Total 3,522 86 28 3,636

None of the Company’s insurance habihties are measured at fair value There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during
the year
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A reconcihiation of Level 3 tair value measurements of financial assets 15 shown 1n the table below There are no financial lrabihuies
measured at fair value using Level 3 fair value measurements

Equity Debt

securities securities Total

£m £m £m

Balance at | January 2011 17 2 19
Total gains or losses recogmised 1n the profit and loss account 3 - 3
Purchascs 6 1 7
Disposals (1) - (1)
Balance at 31 December 2011 25 3 28
Total gains or losses recognised 1 the profit and loss account 6 (1) 5
Purchases 7 - 7
Balance at 31 December 2012 38 2 40

There were no (ransfers 1nto or out of Level 3 during the penod Of the total gains or losses for the peried (shown 1n the
reconcitiation above) included 1n the profit and loss account, £5m (2071 £nil) relates to asscts held at the end of the reporung period

17. Investment in subsidiary undertakings

The Company’s principal subsidianies at 31 December 2012 are set out 1n note 34 The compames are principally all engaged n the
transaction of 1nsurance or related business The countries shown are those of incorporauon and principal operation  The figure for
shares 1n subsidiaries in the balance sheet comprises

2012 2011
£m £m
Net asset value.
At 1 January 10,733 10,368
Acquisitions 130 530
Revaluation (187) (165)
At 31 December 10,676 10,733

The tustoncal cost of invesiments 1n subsidiartes 1s £11,523m (2011 £11,393m)

Acquisiions of £130m in 2012 include the internal acquisinon of 15% of the 1ssued share capital of The Manne Insurance Company
Limited from another company 1n the Group, Royat & Sun Alhance Insurance (Global) Limned, for consideranon of £14m and
capital injections of £94m, £18m and £4m nto RSA Finance, Intouch Insurance Group BV and Sun Alliance Insurance (China)
Limzited respectively

18. Interests in associated undertakings

The Company has a 26 0% holding of ordinary shares in Royal Sundaram Alhance Insurance Limited, which operaies and 1s
incorporated 1n India During the year, Royal Sundaram Alhance Insurance Limited undertock a fund raising exercise in which the
Company participated fully at a cost of £2 3m, maimntaiming s 26 0% holding

2012 2011
£m £m
Net asset value:
At 1 January 11 15
Foreign exchange losses (H (1)
Acquisiions 2 2
Revaluations 2 (5)
At 31 December 14 1

The historical cost of interests in associated undertakings 1s £17m (2011 £15m)
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19. Tangible assets
Equipment Computer Total
software
2012 2012 2012
fm £m £im
Cost
At | January 100 208 308
Addinons 10 - 10
Disposals (45) - (45)
At 31 December 65 208 273
Depreciation
At 1 January (67) (7N (144)
Charge for the year (7) (25) (32)
Disposals ’ 44 - 44
At 31 December (30) (102) (132)
Net book value
At 31 December 2012 35 106 141
At 31 December 2011 33 131 164
20 Share capital
2012 2011
£m £m

Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid up-
4,511,091,326 (2011 4,511,09],326) ordhnary class A shares of 25p each 1,128 1128
1¢2011 Ijordinary class B share of US$1 - -

21. Subordinated loan notes

2012 2011
£m £m

Subordinated loan note equity instruments 372 372
Subordinated habilites 492 492

Subordinated loan note equuty instruments

On | December 2004, the Company obtained a subordinated loan from RSA Insurance Group plc, its ultimate parent company, of
£294m, derived from the 1ssue of £450m of subordinated guaranteed perpetual notes on 23 July 2004 The notes have an annual
coupon of 8 50% The claims of the ulumate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims of the
holders ot the notes The loan has no specified matunty

On 5 June 2006, the Company obtained a subordinated loan from RSA Insurance Group plc, its ultimate parent company, of £78m,
denved from the 1ssue of £375m of step up perpetual guaranteed subordinated capital securiies on 12 May 2006 The notes have an
annual coupon of 6 701% The claims of the ulumate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims
of the holders of the capnal securities The loan has no specified matunty

Interest of £22m (2071 £22m) net of tax was paid duning the year on the subordinated [oan note equily mstruments and has been
recognised 1n the Reconcihation of movement in shareholders’ funds on page 9
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21. Subordinated loan notes (continued)
Subordinated habiities
On 30 June 2009, The Company obtained a subordinaied loan from RSA Insurance Group ple, its ultmate parent company, of
£492m derived trem the 1ssuc of £500m of subordinated guaranteed step-up notes on 20 May 2009 The notes have an annual
coupon of 9 375% The claims of the ultimate parent company on the loan are subordinated to the same extent as the claims of the
holders of the notes The loan has a maturity date of 20 May 2039 At 31 December 2012 the far value of the subordinated
habihities 15 £572m (2011 £572m)
22 Claims outstanding
Claims outstanding include claims on certain classes of business which have been discounted The total value of outstanding claims
provisions less related reinsurance recovenes before discounting amounted 10 £4,693m (2011 £4,336m) The total value of gross

outstanding claims provisions before discounting amounted to £5,731m (2071 £5,431m)

Claims are discounted as follows

Discount rate Average period 1o
settlement 1n years
2012 2011 2012 2011
e %
UK Asbestos & Environmental 5.00 500 12 13

In 2003 the Company wrote an Adverse Development Cover (ADC) contract with 1ts former US subsidiary The hiabilites arising
under the ADC contract comprise an msurance component and a deposit component The hability arnising under the insurance
component represents the ttming risk on the settlement of those habihties The financial hability ansing under the deposit
component 15 offset by the value of funds heid in a trust fund whose trust deed only permuts the trust fund assets 1o be used 1o settle
amounts due under the ADC The deposit component of the liability was fully paid during 2012 The value of the funds held in trust
at 31 December 2011 was £0 {bn and the value of the habilny of the deposit component was £0 1bn

The investment return corresponding to the unwind of the discount on the assets supporting the habilities was £2m (2017 £11m)
In determuning the average penod to ulumate clams settlement, estimates have been made based on the underlying claims
settlement patterns

In addiion in the UK certain long tail habiliues are settled by an annuty  This 1s contained within the discounted value of UK and
Scandinavian annwties which 1s shown separately 1n note 20 of the Annual Report & Accounts of the Group

Prior year claims development

The movement in et incurred claims ansing from the difference between the net clarms provision at the beginning of the year and
subsequent payments and the claims provision at the end of the year, was a surplus of £64m (2071 £37m) The positive run-off
reflects the Company’s approach 1o setting reserves at a level which 1s more likely than not 1o run off favourably over the longer

term

23. Equalisation provisions

2012 2011
£m £m
Provision as at | January 286 269
Released 10 the Technical account - General business and 1n the profit on 30 17
ordinary activities before tax
Provision as at 31 December 316 286

As explained 1n note 1b)nt the effect of this provision 1s to decrease shareholders’ funds by £316m (2011 £286m) The increase
in the provision during the year had the effect of decreasing the balance on the technical account for general business and the
profit on ordinary activities before taxation by £30m (2071 £17m)
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24. Provisions for other risks

2012 2011
£m £m
At | January 93 88
Charged/transferred to Profit and Loss Account 55 4]
Utshised (43) (32)
Released (10) )
At 31 December 95 93

Provistons nclude provisions of £39m (2011 £53m) held relating 10 vacant property leases, dilapidations and refurbishments,
the costs relating 10 which will be borne across the period over which the leases expire, which 1s up to 20 years Provisions also
include Motor [nsurance Bureau provision of £18m (20/1 £2/m), reorgamsation provisions of £10m (2071 £ml) and a Fire
Brigade levy provision of £7m (2011 £4m)

25. Deferred tax

Deferred tax for the current year 1s based on a rate of 23% (2011 25%)

2012 2011
£fm £m

Unrealised investment gains 5 5
Accelerated capital allowances 67 58
Other iming differences 114 103
Deferred tax asset 186 166
2012 2011
£m £m

Deferred tax asset at 1 January 166 82
Credt {or the year — Profit and loss account MM 95
Charge lor the year — Statement of total recogmised gains and losses - )
Adjustment for change n tax rate — Profit and loss account (14) (10)
Deferred tax asset at 31 December 186 166

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses ot £1,570m (2071 £1,542m) and unused tax credus of £2.6m
(2011 £2m) available for offset against future profits A deferred tax asset of £90m (20// £9/m) has been recognised 1n respect
of losses and £2m (2071 £2m) has been recognised 1n respect of tax credits included within other temporary differences at 31
December 2012 No deferred tax asset has been recognised 1n respect of the tax losses of £1,177m (20171 £1,176m) due 1o the
unpredictability of future profit streams The losses may be carried forward indefinnely

Deferred tax assets of £219m (2077 £/88m}, which are in excess of profits ansing from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences and that relate (o tax jurisdictions 1n which the Company has suffered a loss in either the current or
preceding period, have been recogmsed on the basis that future taxable profits will be available against which these can be
utibsed The evidence for the future taxable profits 1s a forecast consistent with the three year operational plans prepared by the
relevant businesses, which are subject to internal review and challenge Where relevant, the forecast includes extrapolations of
the operauonal plans using assumptions consistent with those used in the plans

26. Borrowings

2012 2011
£m £m
Amounts owed to credit instiitutions 148 388

Borrowings compnise secured loans from credit wstitutions and bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand At 31
December 2012 and 2011 the Company had in place a one billion US Dollar Euro commercial paper programme There were no
amounts outstanding at 31 December 2012 (2011 £nil)
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27. Other creditors

Other creduors including taxation and social secunty includes £nil (2071 £nil) in respect of corporation tax payable

28. Operating lease rentals

The future aggregate minimum lease paymenis under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Land & Buildings Other
2012 2011 2012 2011

£m £m £m £m
Operating leases which expire
Within one year 1 9 - -
Within two and five years 21 20 - -
After five years 3 7 - -

25 36 - -

All materia! leases of land and buildings are subject to rent review pertods of between three and five years

29. Capital commitments
The estimated amount of capital commitments contracted but not provided for in these financial statements is £50m (2017 £96m)
30. Contingent liabilities

Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance plc has guaranteed on behalf of RSA Insurance Group plc the following

s the US $24m 8 95% subordinated guaranteed bonds due 15 October 2029,

»  the 1ssue of £450m 8 50% subordinated guaranteed perpetual notes There 1s an option to call the notes on 8 December
2014 and every five years thereafier,

o  the 1ssue of £375m step up perpeiual guaranteed subordinated capital secunities There 1s an option to repay the bonds
on specific dates starting 12 July 2017,

e the 1ssue of £500m 9 375% subordinated guaranteed step-up notes There 1s an option to repay the notes on specific
dates from 20 May 2019, and

¢ af£455m committed credit facihity of which £nil has been drawn

31. Cash flow statement

The Company 1s a wholly-owned subsidiary of RSA Insurance Group plc and the cash flows of the Company are included in the
consohidated cash flow statement of RSA Insurance Group plc  The Company has thus taken advantage of the exempuion permitted
by FRS | (revised 1996) ‘Cash flow Statements’ and has elected not to prepare 1ts own cash flow statement

32. Related party transactions

Advantage has been taken of the exemptien provided in FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing details of iransactions
with RSA Tnsurance Group plc and 1ts subsidiaries and associated undenakings

33. Parent companies

The Company’s immediate parent company 1s Royal Insurance Holdings ple, which is registered in England and Wales

The Company s ultimate parent company and controlling party 1s RSA Insurance Group plc, which 1s registered in England and
Wales and 1s the parent company of the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements A copy of that

company’s accounts can be obtamed from 9™ Floor, One Plantation Place, 30 Fenchurch Street, London. EC3M 3BD or
WWW [5agroup ¢om
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34. Principal subsidiary companies

Principal activity

United Kingdom

Argentina

Bahrain
Branl

Canada

Chile
China
Colomha

Denmark

Guernsey
Isle of Man
Mexico

Netherlands

Netherlands Anulles
Poland

Republic of Ireland
Sweden

Uruguay

British Aviaton Insurance Company Limuted (57 19%)
The Globe Insurance Company Limied"”

The Marine Insurance Company Limited

Royal International Insurance Holdings Limited*®
Royal & Sun Allance Reinsurance Limuted™

Sun Insurance Office Limied'®

Royal & Sun Alliance Seguros (Argentina) SA
El Comercio Compaiiia de Seguros (96 7%)
Aseguradora de Créditos y Garantias (99 9%)

Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance (Middle East) Limited E C (50 0%)

Royal & Sun Allhance Seguros (Brasil) SA

Roins Financial Services Limited

Quebec Assurance Company

The Johnson Corporation

Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance Corﬁpany of Canada
Western Assurance Company

Canadian Northern Shield Insurance Company
L’Union Canadienne Compagme D’ Assurances

4]

RSA Seguros (Chile) SA (99 4%)
Sun Alhance Insurance (China) Limited
Royal & Sun Alhance Seguros (Colomba) SA (86 7%)

Codan A/S
Codan Forsikring A/S

Insurance Corporation of the Channel Islands Limmited
Tower Insurance Company Limited
Royal & SunAlhance Seguros (Mexico) SAde CV

RSA Overseas (Netherlands) BV
RSA Overseas Holdings BV
Intouch Insurance Group BV*

Royal & Sun Allance Insurance (Anulles) NV (51 0%)
Link4 Towarzystwo Ubezpieczen SA

RSA Insurance Ireland Limited*

Trygg-Hansa Forsakrings AB

Rovyal & Sun Alhance Seguros (Uruguay) SA
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General insurance
Holding company
General insurance
Holding company
General insurance
General insurance

General 1nsurance
General insurance
General insurance

General 1nsurance
General 1nsurance

Holding company
General insurance
Holding company
General nsurance
General 1nsurance
General insurance
General 1insurance

General insurance
General insurance
General insurance

Holding company
General insurance

General insurance
General insurance
General insurance
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
General mnsurance
General 1nsurance
General insurance

General insurance

General insurance
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34. Principal subsidiary companies (continued)

Notes

I UK companies are incorporated in Great Britain and are registered 1n England & Wales,
*100% direct subsidiary of Royal & Sun Alliance Insurance plc

2 Except where indicated all holdings are of equuty shares and represent 100% of the nomuinal 1ssued capital

3 Some subsidiaries have been omuited from this statement to avoid providing particulars of excessive length

4 The general insurance business of The Globe Insurance Company Limited was legally transferred to Royal & Sun Alhance
Insurance plc and The Marine Insurance Company Limiuted on 1 January 2012

5 The general 1nsurance business of Royal International Insurance Holdings Limited was legally transferred 1o Royal & Sun
Alhance Insurance plc and The Marine Insurance Company Limited on 1 January 2012 Following this transfer, the principal
acuvity of Royal International Insurance Holdings Limited 1s as a holding company

6 On 1 January 2012, general insurance business from The Sea Insurance Company Limited and National Vulcan Engineering
Insurance Group Limited legally transferred to Sun Insurance Office Limited

7 GCAN Insurance Company was amalgamated into Royal & Sun Alhance Insurance Company of Canada on | January 2012
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